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IN THE DAYS OF OUR ANQESTORS
; ;

. THE STORY OF CORNELIS MELYN AND HIS FAMILY
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When Cornelis Melyn was born ini1600, his parents were

" residents of Antwerp. Perhaps ‘generations of Melyns had

lived and died in that city, but it is thought that the

- femily came originally from Malines and that the family

name was-derived from that of the town.

The name of the family appears in a bewildering variety
of forms. Some of these forms are strongly suggestive of
Malines. We find the name goelled Moullaing, Murline,
Mellyns, Melines, Meljin, Melyen, and Melyn. The latter
form has been adopted. by histoqiansiof the present time. (1)

! i ' -

Though we know very little iof Cdrnelis Melyn's parents,
we do know that from 1567 to 1600 they and all other resi-
dents of Antwerp had lived through a period of great tri-
bulation. King Fhilip II of Spain was determined to rule
the Netherlands according to his own will and also to stamp
out Protestantism. The people iprotested. That was treason.
Eersiqutionsand warfare brought death to many and misery

o all, 1 5 :
: : . r

Antwerp endured a siege of fourteen months. The city
wags sacked; property was configcated; thousands of skilled
artisans sought refuge in BEnglend, and one hundred thousand -
rich burghers fled to Amsterdanm. Spain dealt a lasting
blow to Antwerp by building a ortified bridge across the
River Schelgt, in order to keey out her enemies. 1t was
the Scheldt! that had given commercial supremacy to Antwerp,
for in. its broad estuary two tiousand ships could find
anchorage at one time. Thus the bridge destroyed Antwerp's
commercial prosperity. In short, Syanish despotism had
brought desolation and gloom td that city.

. ; ' . ; _ .

& On his death bed King Philﬁp II resigned himself to
he idea that Holland wes unconguersgble. The struggle
ended., Holland had achieved independence and had become
grgggzﬁlic,ébut Flanders or Beligium was s+i1l a Spanish
e, . o t . )

(1) Melyn or Melijn: pron. CoiNAYLis NMeLIN, short e, long v

i

'35.1ananDyke. Accent last syl. of Melyn.
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.had good teachers.

E - 2

In 1600 Philip II turned over the government o
Flanders to his-daughter Isabella aﬁd her husband,

Duke Albert of Austria. This was the dawn of a better !
day fdr Antwerp. Huge taxes were sjill exacted. The
river was still closed to the ¢ommerce of the world.
Yot the new rulers were trying; to gome extent, to heal
the wounds ‘of the stricken cit&. The burghers of Antwerp
were d plucky people., If theiy city could not be a great

commercial center, they resolved to.make it a center of

" industries. And fthey succeedeq in ‘ﬂfheir resolve.

We do ﬁot ¥now what was thé occupation of Cornelis
Melyn's father, but we do know:that'he left property.
To have acquired or to have re ained any possession in
those troublous days must have!been;an achievement. How- .
ever, 'at the time of Cornelis's birth prosperity must
have been just around the corner. :

H !

. Ag in later years Gornelis?Melyﬁ gpeaks of his nephews,
he could ndt have been an bnlyichil . But that Antwerp
home wWas broken up in 1606, foi in %hat year both parents
died. With truth Cornelis's fatherimight have said, -
"Few and evil have been the days of {the years of my life."

u
Guardians were appointed for Cofnelis after the death
of hid parents, and his schooldays Began. If Cornelis

. ‘was ag persevering in boyhood as hejwas in later life, -

he went to school prepared to gope wyith all the diffi-~
cultigs that letters or figures mig@t present. Although
his years at school in Antwerpi!were:limited to seven, he.
could not have been a dull pupil, for in later years he
was reégarded as a well educated man{ The ability that he
showed in expressing his thoughts in writing clearly,
foreibly, and cleverly would indicate that he mist have

.t
Q Le{arninE and art, as well es'industriés flourished
in Antwerp in Cornelis's youth! ScHolars were attracted

to the city by a noted firm of printiers, the Plantins.
Rubens, "thet greatest Fleminglof them all", was then in

- Antwerp produeing some of his nasterpieces, and Van Dyck

was his pupil. The courtly fiéure f Rubens as well as
the faces of other distinguished artists, scientists and
8cholars must have been famili%r to iCornelis in his boyhood.

o {

At the age of thirteen Corﬁelis wag apprenticed to
learn the trade of leather-dregsing, an industry which had
enabled many Flemish burghers to accumulate much wealth,

He worked at this trade for five years. Then, having an=- .
ﬂounceg his intention of starting out to see the world,
1@ received a certificate of good character and set forth.

!
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e Perhaps from childhood, the Schéldt, "the greyest of
% grey rivers", had been beckoning to jCornelis, and he had
- Jonged to follow its course toithe gea and far away.

. Many of his countrymen, perhapg some of his own kinsfolk,
had gone to England and had foynd places in the industries
of that country. Distant journeyings were coming to be '

. the fashion in those days. Voyages;to the East Indies,

- Africa, Brazil, end North America in the seventeenth cen-

 gury were as thrilling as around—thieworld flights or
ascents to the stratosphere ar¢ in }he twentisth century.

. : i
The Dutch East India Company had been formed in 1602,

Their fleets were sailing Oriental seas, bringing in tea
end coffee and those spices solprized by our forefathers
that a seat near the spice box was more coveted than a
geat above the salt. The Dutch also monopolized the grain
trade .of the Baltic.  Moreover, there were the whale

fisheries of the Arctic to attract the most venturesome.
' In short, there were plenty ofiadventures for all who

wanted them. i .

1 1 1 { F
Where Cornelis Melyn went vhen he left Antwerp in
© 1618 we do mot know, but wherever he went or whatever he
~ did we may be sure that he was observing intelligently,
and probably he was dreaming of a great future. When he,
returned to his native city helwas twenty-six years of
age. 'The time had come for thé setflement of the estate,

We do mot know thé amount of his inheritance, but it wae .
- evidently sufficient for his pqrposés at the moment.

: Conditions had greatly charged irn Antwerp since the

days of Cornelis's childhood. ;Doubtless the young man -
could have found a business openingjin that city. But
Amsterdam, the largest commercial center of Holland and
the most. important financial cénter |in Burope at that
time, offered greater opportunities for a successful -
career to ah ambitious young mdn who wanted to make his
ﬁprtunb. Ag the Van Rensselaer Boudr MSS. allude %o

elyn as a leather-dresser, he !probdbly established him-
8elf in that business in Amgteridam, |

‘ : ;

Mve %n?1627; Cornelis Melyn married WJannetje Adriaens of
fgcrd'“ We may picture Jannetjé as & rosy-cheeked, sweet- -
Soee ipalden with flaxen hair, | Thay she was arrayed in
daéy:h?d of skirtg we may be sure. [Perhaps on her wedding
gozn Og vagi dressed like Gari Melchers Dutch Bride, in a
ocoan,. pinkish lavender with a white veil. On ordinary
dressepns’ however, she would have worn black or brown
of redP' since only the peasanﬂs wore the colorful garb .
Or blue. Iittle did Jannetje know on her wedding

.
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 and Cornelis wished to marry and seftle himself in business. .
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of the ‘adventures thatb weri in store for her, but
had she known she would probably have thought that all
would be well with her at the side of the enthusiastic

young Fleming, Cornelis Melyn.i {
. ) ’ ! |

Jannetje had probably received at least an elementary

education, .since the primary s@hoolz of Holland were open

to both ginls and boys. Thereiwere!also French schools

“gor girls who desired a more advanced education than the
l B

primary schools offered.

day

4

The first twelve years of Jammetje's married life were
spent in a well-ordered Dutch home. The typical Dutch
house ‘such as we would have seén in:Amsterdam in Jannetje's
day was of red brick. Its narrow gable end faced the
ptreet. The tiny panes of glass of the arched windows'
gegumed a violet tint when seen from the outside. The
doors and ironwork were of dark gre¢n, and other colors
might ‘appear in the brick patt%rns.E

//If we dould have entered the Melyn house we would _
have found ‘ourselves in a long narréw hallway, with rooms
on one side and the staircase in thé rear. FPerhaps we
would ‘have 'thought the kitchen! the host attractive room.
Ites large fireplace with brass|cranes, its heavy mantel,
1ts blue-figured wall tiles, the cadement windows, the
great icelling beeams, the wall upboard with ite ponderous
Tock, ‘and the Delft plates in long rows around the walls’
gave an impression of warmth and comfort. The bedrooms
would ‘have seemed rather cold,!for the tiled floors were
-unrelieved by rugs, the alcove! bed was hidden behind
heavy 'curtains, and the furniture was stiff, But the
tiled ‘floors as well as all other parts of the house were’
immacylate for the Dutch housewives of three centuries
_ego _had a passion for cleanlinéss, |Indeed, they fore-
gtalled the modern scientists in that respect. In those
-days Holland was a paradise‘be?auseiof the independence
accorded tq them. ‘ - S

- ; - | |
~_Narrow 'streets, and thus alack|of natural lighting,
would;havegmade the rooms seem|somewhat gloomy, but the
walls 'of a ‘Dutch home were brightau#d by pictures. Fre-
%ge%tly a mMap of the world waslto be seen on the wall so
-tr:d the family could trace thé¢ course of mariners or
beeners 2g 'they sailed to distant shores. There must have
traceS{uch g map in the Melyn heme, where Cornelis could
futurfvoyages of pest years and play new voyages for the
Atlanzi Jennetje must have marked the course across the
Yoyage ¢ many times before shelembarked upon the momentous
ot a4 which brought her to a $tran$e land that was full
- sorder, disasters, and horrors. -

P ‘ = oL

S P,



s

Iife was tolmake great deménds ypon Jannetje's
gtrength and courage, but her old age was peaceful and
tranquil. During the twelve years that she and Cornelis
gpent 1in Holland a daughter, Cornelia, was born in 1628,
.'a son,; Cornelis, in 1633, Jacob; ini1640, and probably
. gnother son was born whose name 1s sot known. It seems
probable tlat these years in Amsterdam must have been
feirly prosperous for the Melyn family. Otherwise the
' great ‘enterprise which Cornelis later undertook would
“have been imposeible. | i

Although details of the Am%terd$m periocd of Melyn's
- 14fe are lacking, history furnishesius with background
. and atmosphere, Holland was 1 tensély alive. It was an
- aera of thrilling adventures, great activity, and notable
- achievements, Melyn's future must have been greatly in-
" fluenced both by the atmospheré of Amsterdam and by the
range of activities of Dutch life in this period, even ‘
' though the !direction of hig ulfimate endeavor was probably
’determinediin his youth, when he heard tales of adventures
. in faraway lands. As a boy, C¢rnelis must have been
“thrilled by the story of Henry: Huds¢n's attempt to find
. & northerly route to China, hi disgovery of Manhattan
~and the Hu%son River, and his Fragi; fate.

;ﬁAmsteﬁdam and after, the businéss of Burope was transacted -
~ on thq Amsterdam Exchange. At|this!{time the tulip craze
reached its height. Speculators tr%dea in tulips as they

: x &
During !the twelve years th?t thé Melyns lived in

would deal with stocks and bonds. ingle bulbs sometimes
brought from four thousand to five thousand guilders on
the,Sﬁock Bxchange. - Fortunes iere made and lost in tulips.
Posslbly Cornelis Melyn may have dabbled in tulip stock.
We do not know. ! i@ '

) 1

In agriculture as well as in flériculﬁure the
Hollanders Feveloped great improvements. They brought to
perfection the qulture of the gther |winter vegetables.
This was a great boon to Europj, bedause the use of these
vegetables prevented famine and the |scourges of disease. -
gig wes so0 improved in quality ithat ithe Dutch had the
n est cattle and dairies in oped It is said that
b population of England more ithan idoubled through the

option of’ the agricultural improvedments of the Dutch.

: g j : : .
: dch factories were sendi&g out fabrics of a quality
formerly found only in Italy and Flanders. Their ware-

houses were; filled with the productd of the world.
l ' : ~ -
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( : Tﬁe Dutlch of the seventeenth ce&tury were not less
gistinguishled in literature, sc¢iencd, and art than in
trade, manufactures and agriculture. At that time Holland
was giving %o the world the most acqomplished jurists,
the most peinstaking historiansg, the most skillful.
physidiansﬁ and the most original tHinkers in science.
Studen'ts from all countries fldcked (to Leyden. More
books here dssued by Dutch publisghers in the seventeenth
century than by all the rest of Eurdpe combined. As

her coptribution to art, Holland gave Rembrandt to the
world. Such was the stimulating atmosphere in vhich
Cornelis Kelyn lived and worked for twelve years. As

he was a man possessing knowledge, imagination, energy,
ambition, apd dauntless courage, it was natural that he
‘ghould have dreams of some great endeavor which he would
have sought to realize. The tryend gf affairs determined
the direction which Melyn's endeavoy should follow.

i ' . i .

Ag earfy as 1592, Flemish defugdes in Holland had
advocated the organization of & Dutch West India Company,.
but the charter was not ilssued until June, 1621. Fron
time to time Amsterdam merchants had sent out ships to

. get furs from the Indians of lMgnhattan, but no permanent
colony wae established there uptil 1623. The Manhattan
hamlet of bark huts and its bales of beaver skins offered

- little attraction to dwellers In Amgterdam.

' ]

. The States-General gave toithe West India Company
exclusive jurisdiction over Dutch trade not only in
' New Netherland and the West Ingies ut in Brazil and
»  parts of West Africa. A4s early as %623, this company
had a fleet of seventy~three vesselg in operation on the
Atlantic. Mrs. Van Rensselaer sayssy "Wealth poured
into Holland from South Americg, thed West Indies and
West African shores and also from capture of rich Spanish
galleons. JIvory tusks by the thoussnd, gold by the hun—
dred weight, silver by the ton, silk, cotton, dyewoods,
perfumes and precious stones came tg¢ Amsterdam, but from
New Netherland Burope had gottén nothing but furs and
tobacco." fTherefore the West India [Company used only
two or; three of its ships in trade With New Netherland.

! i . ; ‘ ‘
on Two parfies were representéd in |the West India Company.
€ party wished to maintain Neéw Amsterdam as a trading

- 'post; the other party advocated the icolonization of the
Provinge, ‘ P

N ! | ; l
sch In. 1629 the States—General%ratiﬁied a colonization
diegmg' and: pamphlets describigg this plan were widely
ributed in Holland. Doubt easy%hese “pamphlets were

Tead with interest b t | ing
, ‘ ¥y Cornelis iMelyn. According to the
:?Ologifatiop Schemeg~coldnisﬁaimigh teke up as much land

£

i
o | ]
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as they co@ld‘properly cultiva%e oufside of New Amsterdam

itgelf. : . q g

Hdd thd Dutch not been a fyee, ¥ctive, prosperous
people, it iis probable that many would have availed them~
gelves of ﬂhis‘opportunity to emigr@te to New Netherland.
But cqlonization was slow. InLordep to stimulate emigra-—

{

tion fo this new colony, the company offered special -
privileges to any man approved|by them who would agree

fo take to New Netherland fifty adult settlers at his own
expense and risk. ' ! 4

chartéred fowns rights of selflgovernment. Similar rights
were to begaccorded to those who assumed the duties and
responsibilities of patroons, ﬁho, n fact, would be
feudal lorﬁs, almost independent of|governors. Patroons

In Hclﬁand the .great estatbs sh%fed with cities and

1

ag well as{colonists were to pﬁy thg Indians for their
lands. Badh patroon was entitled to a grant of land six-
teen miles in length. The widbth of! the grant was %o be
determinediby future development. Fishing and gaming
privileges {were included with the grant as well as the
rightito build mills, %o receive a tenth of the harvests
grownion the grant and to selll the land, if desired. '
For fifteen years the patroon yas b be exempt from pay-
ment ¢f import duties, and thei company was expected to
transport cattle and implement% free of charge.

Patroons were expected to govern their communities
in accordarce with the laws of)Holland. They had no
military authority but were to! havel¢ivil and criminal
jurisdicticn within their own domain, though tenants had
the right gf appeal to the governor|in certain cases.
The tenants brought out by thel patrdon were not serfs,
though thej agreed to be subjegts of the patroon for g
term of years. i i
. The,paéroou might trade albng the coast, but he must
first@brin his commodities tojNew Amsterdam and pay a
duty ¢f five per cent. IHe Wasiexpe@ted to esgtablish
ChurC%?S d schools in his dopain and send in annual re-
portsgmn rdégard to his colony.! When desirable he was to
send g delegate to New Amsterdém to)consult with Governor
.and Council about affairs of ¢ mmon | interest. Theoreti~
, gﬁllyg few irestrictions were imposed upon the right of
. wizhpatrooq to administer the affairs of his community
-th fairness and juetice to all concerned.

: E : .
Beveiqlresgonee to the offers of the West India Company,
hood af patroons esgtablished themselves in the neighbor-
Oratig Ne Amsterdam, but clobke pr&ximity to the auto-
Kilipg governors proved to be undesirable. In 1630 |
‘reoei'n Van Rensselaer, a rich pear] merchant of Amsterdam,
celved aglarge grant, which %nclu ed the present site

v o ; ‘
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of Albsny ahd much of the surrdunding territory. That
was the only patroonship that gurvived 4+he Dutch rule.

)
1

%

? }

As early as 1623 the Fnglish AmBassador to Holland
warned the Dutch that they werg treipassing on English
gerritory at Manhattan. The Dqtch ade no reply but con-
tirued their trading. Inm 1632 the guestion was brought
up again. In fact, the ship cdrrying Governor Minuit
back to Holland was forced intd Plymouth Harbor and seized
for trading wnlawfully in countries 'belonging to England.

. ¥ j . '

Then Holland was obliged td spesk. The Dutch claimed
that they were entitled to territory between thirty-nine .
end forty-ope degrees north latitudd, since the Inglish
had never established any plantation within those boundaries.
Turthermore, the Dutch explained thdt they had purchased ‘
. the territqky that they were o?cupying from the Indians.
In reply the English said that.) as the Indians held the
land in conmon and had no settied,aﬁodes, they did not
own the land. The English clajm to New Netherland was
based upon ‘discovery, occupation, possession, and charters.
 However, they said that if New 'Netherlanders would acknow=
Jedge their subjection to the King of England they might
remain where they were,.ab thelr own risk. Thus the mat-
ter rested for the time. L %

But the West India Company had no security. The
States-General had permitted the comipany to acquire
New Netherland and were tacitly claiming it as Dutch ter-
ritory, though they had given no charter for it, had not
‘defined its boundaries, nor gugrantéed {45 safe possesaion.
This lack of national support as well as their own ex~
travagance ‘and poor management ;in choice of governors
brought about a decline of the 'West |India Company within
a few year o : : L

In 163§=Wouter'Van Twiller@was gent out as governor '
of New Netherland. He brought with him Dominie Bogardus,
Adam Roelantsen, Van Tienhoven:as bookkeeper, and one hun-
dred. forty msoldiers. The schoo¢l established by Roelantsen
and supported by the West India Company under the super—
vision of the church, gurvives|to tﬁie day. It is the -
school of the Collegiate Reformed Church in New York,

the oldest school in the United States, founded two years
before the Boston Latin Schooli ]
of tThe West India Company wag|not satisfied with the growth
callhe.colqny under Van Twillel's management. He was re-=
o Eﬁ in 1637. He had always' treated the Indians well _
- th his agreements with them,. |Perhaps Cornelis Melyn's
Reory would have had a differedt ending if Van Twiller
‘ad been retained as governor ?ntil?1650r' S

o
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gornelis Melyn was ambitioﬁs and energetic. To a
of that sort the idea of agquiring a large estate in.
e New World might make a strgng appeal. Why should he
+ make application for a patroonship? The firsthand
formation he had received from Van Rensselaer in regard
New Nethlerland doubtless strengthened Melyn in his
PO ee this land about which there was so much
a1k, ' Melyn.was a practical mdn. He must have realized
pat iptelligence, enersy, hard work, great risks and |,
agerifices,| a8 well as edequatd equipment, would be eg=
ntial to the establishment of a priosperous community,
ghere all might reap the benefits that the fubure heldi
for the-sucpessful,patroon. Then, too, the lives and

ppiness of his family were involved in this proposition.
Put having weighed the matter ¢arefully, Cornelis Melyn
palled for New Netherland as sﬁper:%rgo of the Hel Wapen:

Yan Norwegen on May 12, 1638. 'He was engaged by
¥an Rensselmer to attend to the tr sportation of goods
%o New Amsterdem. Melyn's main objéct in going, however,

wag to see for himself what th= NewiWorld had to offer.

©  On the eve of Melyn's departure {for New Amsterdam the
following letter was addressed ;to him by Van Rensselaer.

z
: | :[, May 12, 1638
Mknsieur Melijn. Endlosed is a letter to
be delivered to Jacob lanck, as I had for-
gotten to write something. iAdvise me at your
convenience of the recgipt df this letter, as
it is of great importance. | ‘

Herewith also a package oﬁ gight very use-
ful: books, No. X, also to be handed to Jacod
Planck. Enter them also at [the end of your
bill of lading so as ngt to Jforget them and
keep them in your chest or jomewhere else
where they do not get wet. It would not be
bad, either fo read them on the ship. You
mig@t take them all out and !then wrap them up
again when you get on land. |- ' :
. Further, do your bes to dail in the name of
; the, Lord as soon as pogsiblg, to deliver our '
people, goods and horses as safely as possible
and, to treat them well, keeping the fear of
the: Lord before your eyes. He will undoubtedly
through His divine grace grant you a happy znd
. 8peedy voyage, wherewiﬁh, commending you to
His faithful protectioﬂ I remain, with hearty
I greﬁtings.o- ' H
The voyage did not be 5 141 :
o gin veéry pyopitiously, for of=-
B?gh&nd g%ew refused to sail ung sg six ofyﬁan Rens~
h;‘_"aé-m.ho;r_taes were taken out ito make room for their

. and pasks. However, afﬁer a [voyage of three months
thi

essel was approaching Staten Igland, Cornelis Mel
rorreteclad hills in tigir qummer grLory. 'That,yge

| |
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thought, Wés the site for him.| In ﬁis imagination he saw
grain ‘fields ready for harvesting, green pastures, where
fine cattle were grazing, orchards,ggardens,.barns, store-
houges, cottages, and a manor house and, at some future
' day, He saw a town that would yelco%e the incoming vessels.

THe reality and the transf&rmation-which he saw in .
imagination convinced Melyn that he iwas. degtined to become
the Patroon of Staten Island. |He siw only a bright pic-
tups Of sudcess. Nome of the dark shadows later %o be cast
by the folly and tyranny of ruling autocrats and Indian
atrocities entered into the pigture, His enthusiasm did
not abate when he found that Peterse  DeVries already had
s plantation on Staten Island.: A large tract could be
gpared from an area of 44,000 acres) "Besides, DeVries
wag a.just and good man, trusted alike by white men and
Indians. Melyn would like to have such a neighbor.

. Mélyn, ‘anxious to take the!firs£ step toward the re-
alization of his desire, wishe%-to cet back to Holland as
soon as poseible. He remained:but & short time in New
Netherland, Since he was expected to load the ship with .
codfigh foxr the return voyage,:he sailed directly to
Tierra Nuova. ' i i

) P i .

H .
1

A'letter of May 12, 1639, writtén by Van Rensselaer
to the Goveérnor of New Netherland, Epeaks of Melyn as fol-
lowe: ! "Cormelis Melyn is still in France. He so0ld our -
ship there with profit, but thfoughilack of knowledge of
the matter has had a poor catch andicaught not much over
12,000 codfish. In course of pime this will have to be
looked after better. At present we|must pay for our ex—
perience." | Melyn had proved that he was a good business
man, but in the management of Tishing expeditions he was

evidently ‘ot a success, 1 |
On July 2, 1640, after hisjretu$n to Holland, Melyn
obtained permission from the Wést India Company to found
a colony in New Netherland wherever |he was inclined to
. settle. If must have taken strong pressure to gain con-
sent for the establishment of anoth¢r patroonship, for by
this time the company was having trguble in connection
Eith the patroons, and they were not seeking others.
leverﬁhele&s, Melyn got the desired permission. His se-
ection of Staten Islend was approved by their Honors,

and the tr : - _
Rﬂ&isﬁar. ansaction was duly e?tere%.in the Co;onigl

!
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Among the Melyn Papers is the following deed:
Willem Kieft, Director-General of Coun-
.\ cillors, in behalf of the High Mighty Lords,
gtdtes-General of the ?nite‘ Netherlands,
: Hig Highness of Orange; and Honorable. Manager
. of ‘the General Privile%ed Weést India Company
! ypediding in New Nether and, jdeeded to
Cormelis Melyn, July 1640, the entire Staten
Island, except so much ! land [es appertained
to .a farm, which befor had ‘been granted to
De Vries, on condition,that%Melyn should ac-
xnowledge the Managers as nis Lords and obey
their Director and Cowhcilldrs, .and should
scknowledge sovereignty of the States-General,
and should submit to payment of such requi- .

+

 sitions as may be levied by the Menagers.
.. . Mélyn, oon his part, was toihave?power and authority
. to cultivate, inhabit, and uge Statén Island. The gran-

- tors getained no share of clai% or authority over it.

_ Melyn must have been much 6ccupied from the time of
“his return to Amsterdam to Jul%, 1640, In addition to
elosing up his business affairé in the city, he had to
persuade fifty capable colonists to|go with him as tenants.
e also had to purchase livesteck, agricultural implements,
geeds, tools, goods of all kinds nezessary in starting this

' enterprise in the wilderness. |But in August, 1640, Cor-
nelis Melyn was ready to sail with his family and colonists
to make an earthly paradise ofiStat n Island, o

- It must have been a sad moment %or Jannetje as the

d familiar scenes were fading from her view, and she

th her children were facing fhe degngers of the sea in
Mest of an unknown land. Whatever fears she may have

. Tegard to the voyage were justified more speedily
v had anticipated, for their iship was attacked at
Bgéo ﬁtripped of cattle, goods, ang all their belongings,
e Melyn party was obliged to retumn to Holland. _

tgxeS?P might think that Cornelis Melyn would have hesi~
Srad gbout!embarklng upon anojher venture, having spent

ce t; tcap@tal in the purchase of equipment, but we shall
: i? nothing short of complete ruin deunted the courage
eval Bfmanr On February 18, 1641 Melyn received a re-
eval of the grant of land made o Him in July, 1640.

! - i
,$Hggzvar% additional capital was mecessary to finance
htenaagéifventure. Various _mporﬂaﬂt personsg in

coioni‘ad become interested in Cornelis Melyn end in
dorh, zation project. Amorg thils number was Lord

6, 1541; ade thg follo%ing contract with Melyn
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Vory noble Jongheer Godert;Van Reede, Lord Nederhorst,
eritered into contract with Melyn, whereby he agreed to
furnish one-half of the capitainrequired to equip the
second expedition, on condition that he should have one-
nalf of the colony of Staten Igland, TLord Nederhorst

4as to regulate his property a$ he ghould deem proper,
though Melyn was to act as sup@rint?ndent of his colonists

and hold them to their duty. :

In the wummer of 1641 the Melyn!family with forty-one
persons again embarked for New:Netherland, aboard o
Den Eyckenboom. They arrived at their destination on
August 20, 1641. Melyn said one of his letters to the
West India Company, "We immediately began to build houses,
to plough land, and to do everithing conducive to estab-
1ishing a good colony, begrudging neither time nor labor."

Willem Kieft was then Governor of New Netherland.
Notwithstanding the independence accorded to patroons,
we shall sde that there was a direct relation between
the character of Willem Kieft #&nd the fate of the Melyn
colony. It is necessary, therefore, to understand some-
thing 'of XKieft and the methodsiwhich he employed during-
his administration., The predecessors of Kieft, who be-
came governor in 1637, were mofe oriless shadowy figures.
Kieft was by no means shadowy, though his previous record
of dighonesty in handling trust funds might be called '
shady. ! i - T

The seliection of Kieft for!governor was most unwise.
His paternalisbic management was irksome, for he pre-
scribed hours for rising and retiring, for beginning and.
quitting work, and he made strict régulations for the
taverns and tried %o banish immoralities by proclamation.
He did, however, check illicit trade with foreigners and
-eéndeavored to stop the sale of .guns;and intoxicants to =
Indians. S t f i
' | o i | :
- Kieft's predecessors had preserved friendly relations
'gith the Indians., He had orders from the company %o fol-
VcowttheAsamp policy. Friendly'!relations with the Indians
;egP 1Hhed until 1639. Butb Kieft, who was restless, en- -
negei%c’ and erratic as well ag vain, obstinate, and domi-
-andrbng’ wahted to be regarded a8 ajhero by the company
ﬁessiy the colonists. In fact, thig idea became en ob-
_.m,_nat"fltwith him, and he thought thdt if he could - exter-

Oairz hg Indisns of that region hg would achieve his
Bacrs i oo 8 The peace and prosperity of the colony were
: iced to Kieft's desire fqr self-aggrandizement.
a

' " g 4 .
Sy tﬁmgﬁﬁ civilized peoples wars arg often traced to trade
o finﬁ‘aggFic conditions.. Alghough one would not expect
- Netherlglar caugses for warfare among the savages of
8 wpy. Pnd, such was the case, and troubles ceme in
. S ‘ '
| .
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The Indian prized wampum as the jwhite man prizes

old. . The shells from which wampum was made were found
only in cerjtain districts, They abounded on the Long
Island shores. Oyster Bay, in fact,/ was an Indian mint,
The presence of this treasure gt thd doors of the Dutch
was a great adventage in one wig, fqr the Indisns were
glad to exchange furse for wampum. n early Colonial days
wempum and beaver skins furnished almore or less stabi-
lized currency, but when enemigs of;the.Long Island’
Indians cropsed the Sound in syarms ;of canoes and made
paide upon the wampum mint, these disturbances were a
menace to the Dutch. E
. The Dutch had made a treaty of peace with the powelr-
ful Iroquois, the enemies of the Algonguins. The Iroquois. -
had quantities of fine furs to.sell. However, highly as
they va%ﬂed w?mpu?,f?hey preiegiid godgxchange fur? ggr

8. e sale © iresrms to.the Indians was agaln
the law, but white men succumbed to ‘the temptation %o
trade guns for furs, because an Indian would give twenty
beaver skins for one musket. | ; _
. { i .
: In this way some of the Ir%quoié got guns, although
such traffic in guns was prevented in or near New Amsterdam.
e Iroquois were irresistible ;when ithey got guns, and the
Algonguing became alarmed. Th%y were also much offended,
ecause the Dutch had sold firearms to thelr enemies and
ot to them. Thus the white man's greed and the Indian
fear and jealousy of the hostile Iroquois conspired to
'cziaﬁg,unfriendi{ relations beﬁweeg the Dutch and theii
eighbors, the Algonquins. Then, too, the Indians los
heir awe of the white man. Since sSettlements were widely
icattered, the way was.paved fér outbreaks. R
Governor Kieft's stupid policy was the most potent
ctor in arousing Indian resentment against the white
ban and in producing the resul%ing'tragedies. In the
8t place, Kieft demanded tribute from the neighboring

ibes, sinpe th : : : e
,Bhawké. | é Dutch had pr%tectﬁd them against th
Then, ih 1640, a party of éaritahg was charged with
aling pigs from the De Vries plantation on Staten Island.
~;p§niShmept for this theft, Kieft )sent soldiers, who took
gﬁiansfby surprise, killed several of them, and des-
yiahthei? crops. As a result of Kieft's action, the
1in{a returned to desolate gﬁe Dé Vries plantation,

g four of his tenants. ese Indians were still

rther enraged by Kieft's offer to other tribes of a

”nty%for Fhe heads of Raritaqs. !

oy 8 : : ,

522; ﬁgelgause\of'atill more seribus trouble we must

8 to Mol 26, when. an Indian of the Weckquaesgeck tribe
ndian attan with furs to jsell. A white man murdered

iiven dtg g6t possession oﬁuhisﬁurs. The Indian's

i not forget this murder, and, in 1641, a

. | )
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ephew of the murdered man avenged his uncle's death by
killing Claes Smit at Manhatten. Since this was the
Indisn ided of the fulfillment of duty, the sachem re-
fused to give the murderer up vhen Kieft demanded him.

4 to lopk at!things from the Indian

Kieft had dlways refuse
point of view. Now he saw hisjopportunity for a wholesale
‘glaughter ¢f the Indians. % ’

.

In case he did not succeediin his plan to exterminate

‘the Indians of that region, Kieft did not want to shoulder
‘the blame.; Therefore, he triell to implicate representa-
gives of the whole body of colpnisté in promoting warfare.
n cage of .success he would be;the hero; in case of failure
te would be able to relieve hi@selftof.liability. On
ngust 29, 1641, a few days after the arrival of the Melyn
oloniste at Staten. Island, heads of families were startled
o have certaln propositions pﬁblic%y submitted for their
ouncil. The three :

iscussion by the Director and his
Should the murder

uestions propounded were as followss
Cldes Snmit be avenged? Whep end|in what menner? By
| { '

thom ¢an this be effected?

13

Aﬁ Kieft's command, %weiveémen vere to be chosen tb

sasist in ﬁhe direction of thip affair. The heads of |
tamilies met at the fort and chose twelve men %o decidL
hether they should avenge the: murder of Claes Smit by
oing ‘to war. It is said that Cornelis Melyn, even though
1@ had arrived so recently) wagp onegof this committee. -

' ! ' '

This was a difficult situation.! If the twelve men
viséd against chastising the;Indiédns they would be -
harged with weakness, lack of!patriotism, and disloyalty
0. thé government, since Kieft: regarded criticlsm of his
%}ici as {reason. Furthermoré, if|the Indians found oud
hat the committee had refused! to pynish them, they might

omeé bolder and move hostile. After careful considera-
n_the committee assented toithe wse of force against
hndIﬂdian_, if necessary, but!recommended peaceable de=

Vsi The men also suggested that|an expedition should
sent when the warriors were%awayion their hunting trips.
e 2E§ng df their reply lay i#s thefollowing words:
efai pegple recognize no other héad than the Director-

Ly tgerefore they preferithatian expedition should

!
[

i

-g;qt and that he should head the|van, while they on
‘bart joffer their persons;to follow his steps and
¥ his commands," ; ] |

Gaverndr Kieft had b t : | '

3 i . een outwitted by the twelve men.

18 respongibility for warfare,was laid on his shoulders.
ghe clever answer ?f thé committee was coldly
;e no measures wereﬁtakeq against the Indians

gommittee'ofitwelvé did{not stop when they
to the Director's questions, for they saw an
© establish a populer Yoice in the affairs

& . " i
3
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of the colony. Therefors, on January 21, 1642, they sent
a petition ko the Director on HYehalf of the people of
New Netherlend, asking for redress of certain grievances.
In order that taxes might not We imposed on the country'
without the: knowledge and consdnt of the twelve man com-
nittee, they requested that thd people should be repre-
sented in the meetings of the ‘ouncil. The committee
consented tp an expedition against the Weckquaesgecks in
return for redress of grievances. :

Their Director was furious}whenfhe received this

. petition. The body which he hgd créated to further his

own crooked; designs had thwart d hin and was now attempting
to interfere in his absolute c ntrol of the affalrs of
government.| Thus he forbade the twélve men to hold any

more meetings.

5 L
The governor had not giveni'up his original intention
of exterminating the Indians. ‘He s#ill wented some kind
of authorization, however, and is86 he résorted to trickery
to attain wis ends. In February, 1643, Jan Damen gave a
" dinner. When all except the governdr and his secretary
had become more or less intoxiéatedﬁ a petition inspired
by Kieft, which authorized an attack upon the Indians, :
was signed by the guests. On February 24, 1643, with this
fraudulent {justification for his course, Kieft issued -
orders to drive away and destroy the savages encamped
across the river. The Indians weére jtaken by surprise.
More than one hundred men, womén, agd children were killed
by the two ‘attacking parties. ! 3
, . ' ; Cd
. The enﬂaged Indians aVengeé this attack by devastating
.~ ‘the farms in the vicinity of Néw Amdterdam and by slaying
~the settlers or taking them captive{ The number of Dutch
farmhouses on Manhattan was reduced from forty %o four or
five, and mﬁst of the survivors huddled around Fort
Amsterdam, living in straw huts. archy prevailed. All
. of the settlers were angry with Kieft. Dominie Bogardus,
et o ¥ho severely denounced this orgel and foolhardy policy of
o Kieft, was jprosecuted by the ggverndr. ' '

chi. §¥even ltribes of Indians wére on the warpath. The
mingt of the Haverstraws thought that they could exter~
whon %hthe whites. Through th effgrts of Captain De Vries,
Wwith ﬁhe Indiens trusted, treaties of peace were signed
nectlcy opg Islend Indians, gut wir broke out-in Con-
was deagd anh gpread to the Hudson River Valley. There

28 deadly ffear in New Amsterdam by the following September.

ustaa§°§°lﬁ disaster occurredadurng the summer of 1643,
n g lhtee yn was getting his gettlement well started. -
aye mmy?hgommunication to the West India Company, Melyn
o ouses and farme end !every thing were burmt,

- ¢ . ) A ) E ¥
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cattle besidece some people were #hot dead. So that I
was obliged te flee for the sa%e of 'gnving my life and to
sojourn with wife and children'at the Menatans £ill 1647." "
Melyn had bourht a house for the useé of his family in .
troublous times. It was on the‘eas? half of Broad Street

.5;,-betweén Pe%rl and Stone Street%. \

T the midst of the oolonyzs confusion and distress,

Kieft called upon the people 6 .chodse eight men to decide
. what éoursé of adtion should be puréued. Thisg board of
" eight men #ncluded'Kuyter, Isasc Allerton, om of the
Mayflower pilgrims, Thomas Hall of Virginia, and Cornelis
Melyn. Melyn was chosen to be . President of the Board.

T R o TR "
T R e T

i . £

This new committee decided|that!peace should be kept
* with the Indians of Long Islend but!that war should be .
declared ageinst the Hudson River tribes. At Isaac
Allerton's request, Captain Jokn Underhill, formerly of
Boston, came to the rescue of New Netherland. He salled
to Greenwich with one hundred fifty Dutch soldiers, des-
troyed the {Indian fort and killed iﬁs-defenders. . BEight
hundred Indians perished, thusbreaking up the league of
tribes which had threatened the exigtence of New Netherland.

. The faﬁous Anne Hutchinsonzand her family of sixteen
had been magsacred by the Indisns within a few miles of
New Amsterdam. It is an inter¢sting fact that Captain
Underhill had been one of Mrs, (Hutchinson's adherents in
the unhappy days of the Antinomian Gontroversy. TFor-
tunately for New Netherland, this Cdptain proved to be
~ far more ef%ectual in warfare 2han ﬁn theological con- |
troversy. ad it not been for his services, the New
Netherland colony would have been rqined at this time, -
since New Amsterdam itself had {been :devastated above
Chalk Pond.) i ‘ , ,

The devblopment of Melyn's |Staten Island grant was
brought to a 'standstill. Howe%er; g8 we have said, he
§Wned A house on Broad Street. !In oxrder to control more
Iand in this vicinity, he made the flollowing purchases. o
an Augnst, h644 he purchased a?housé_and lot in New Amster-
fi? from the widow of Eben Reddenhaus for two hundred ‘
Burty guilders., He purchased house jand ground from Lo
iy %er Jorigen for nine hundred fifty guilders (or $380.00)
landecbmber%of the same year. IThen Melyn owned all the -
Duri along the river from the Ditch 'to the City Tavern.:
lornngghla residence in New Amsterdsm, Melyn saw the for-
o n conditions of the coloniste, and he was stimulate

ore active exertions on their b%half. '

ogarn? DOV, edght man committed had |counseled Kieft in
han fhag the Indian' warfare, but they went even farther
eaver opi gWhen Kieft wanted ﬁo pldce taxes on beer and
Indis o ng, the group protested, gaying that the West

! “ompany had never authquzed the governor to impose

|
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sxes and had guaranteed wilitaery protection. But Kieft
hout ;monetary resources, and B0 they finally con-

: a5 Wit ; - ,
' gented;to taxes on beaver skins: and Wines.
. S o (

S Kieft now had an arm

3

ok

y of four huhdred fifty men, .
gince Stuyvesant had sent up soldiers to New Netherland.

. Bowever, the farmers were gti1l! afraid to go back to

" thelr farms: The governor did nothing but quarrel and

' who criticized his policies. . Disorder,

.~ prosecute those
" dissension, and destitution reigned in New Amsterdam.

. ¢ '
The committee of eight wrangled with the governor for

' gix months and then could bear it no: longer. In the fall
tes addressed a memorial to

of 164%, Melyn and his associa
the States—General and to the West India Company. They
and children had been murdered in .

t0ld how men, women, ‘
their homesiby the Indians; houses . d grain barracks

had been burned with the produce; cattle had been slain;
. "We wretched .

almost' every place had been abandone: .
people’ musti skulk with wives and@ little ones in poverty,
in and’ around the fort at Manhqttanﬁ where we are not

"Should

gafe even fbr an hour." The memorial conbinued,
iall, through neces-

suitable assistance not arrive we sh
gity, in order to save the lives of %hose who remain, e
Hoglish in the Bast|

‘obliged to betake ourselves to :the
better than to possess this place.™

who would like nothing ‘
This 1hst sbtatement was the pin used to prick the home’
authorities into consciousnessy ; . '

' . i N
' The memprial also blamed ndt onlly Kieft but the com-
pany for retaining him as diregtor and for doing nothing
%0 help the| colonists. The eight men asked that Kieft
be deposed hecause of these deplorable conditions, and

hat New Netherland be allowed |to hgve some kind of
frank presenta-

‘epresentative government. This clear,
don of thel subject shows the demociatic apirit of the
riter, of the memorial, Cornelis Melyn.,

S
" The comnittee's suggestions to the West India Company
=F§9 not welcome. Indeed, they seemed to create a pre-
wdice' against the memorialists. Meanwhile, Kieft had
nt aLPamPhlet to the West India Company, trying to make.
aipgear that he had been opposed fo the course of action
o iﬁd brbught on the Indian iwarfdre. Melyn and his
Eatcxages’lin return, sent a private communication to The

éehg éa Company, directing their lattention to the '
Dunhgds that Kieft had toldi This document roundly
%her o Kieft, and, as we shdll sqon see, it proved %o
%hof; O%rpe of much trouble to Cornelis Melyn, its :
Tagt %a efore any answer could come to this appeal,
beétigrraproved by his superiors in Holland. He final-
resat -35 himself in an effdrt tg pacify the province.
: vy Oofi peace was signed by seventy-three sachems in

»
9 '
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governor Kieft knew nothing for bome time about the ’
eight men committee's 1644 commﬁnication to the West
India Company. Even without this knbpwledge, however,

he showed hostility to Melyn in variFus petty annoyances.
Tn 1645 Melyn was charged with having sold wine to the
Indiang, but nothing came of that acceusation. . He had
plantef gradin o the three acres of fland that he had °
leaged from, the West India Company, and was suddenly,
 without any| reason given, orde%ed td cut the grain he-
fore it hadi ripemed and %o givﬁ up His lease. This land,
by thq,way,;is now. occupied by‘Trinﬂty Church.

The Melyn family acquired 4 new neighbor while they
were living on Broad Street. He waé Jochen Kuyter, who
proved to be a congenial friend and a faithful ally.
Tike Melyn, Kuyter was all educgted man of some means.

He had come to YNew Netherland in 16%9, well equipped 6
egtablish a plantation on the ﬁarle¢1River, where he had
a grant of ‘499 acres. Kuyter had been a member of the
Committee d¢f Twelve Men and haﬁ bee% opposed to the vio-
lent measures taken by Kieft againsh.the Indians. His
farm buildings had been destroyed by the Indians in
March, 1644, snd it was for this regson that he purchased
a smail house at the corner of Broa _and Pearl Street.
Henceforth jhe and Melyn were chosel agsociated in their
relations with Kieft and his shccespor.

: ‘ | ' H s

Two dawghters, Susannah an Magialen, and the youngest
son, Isaac, were born during the trpublous years that
Jannetje apd Cornelis Melyn spent in New Amaterdam.
Cornelia, the eldest, was elghteen ?ears of age when Isasc.

was born in 1646. : ;

The Wegt Indla Company wag dire ted by the States-
General inf{1644 to take prompt actipn on the complaints
. of the colénist's eight man copmittee. The company ' s
reply; to this directive was that they could no longer de-
fend a distant place which hathosﬁ'far more than they
had received from 1%, unlees the government would aid
them.: The| company was almost bankrupt from declaring
large| diviflends in an era of meckless speculation, but
they were pbliged 4o congider ithe gomplaints of the com-
mittee and{ their suggested reformsd The company‘s re-

_ gponqe to the criticisms of Kieft's arbitrary and disas-
rous methods was Kieft's recdll td Hollend and the ap-
Poinﬂgent of Peter StuyvesantEaS_quernor of Wew Netherland.

was Rpen Kﬁeft discovered thaf he &as to be recalled, he

him more smxious than ever 4o lassert himself and %o enrich

'dissqlf° :The people were all the more eager to oppose and

fKieE%fage him. Had the people known the character of

Bituﬁti successor, ‘they wouldkhavegrealized that their

as on would not be improved in!the new regime as far
P°PUlaﬁ representation in government was concerned.

: - : ;

a
'. - !  |

i,



19

} i f

H

; ; ! ! .
peter Stuyvesant was an eddcated, gturdy soldier of
- fifty-five years when he came ﬁo New Netherland. IHe
had his good points; he was engrgetic, upright, and con-
’sbientious,:according to his standaxds. However, he was
glso impulsive, passionate, opiniongted, and stubborn,
an autocrat from the crown of hils hgad to the soles of
his feet., [That means, of course, that he was an enemy
ghts. When Stuyvgsant reached New Amsterdan

!

to popular ’gi
647, Van der Donck says thdt he carried himself

in May‘, 1 , .
like & peacock as he passed frqm the ship %o the fort.

Most of the residents of M#nhat#an bad assembled at,
 the fort for the inauguration ceremgnies. Kieft was
. prepared to surrender the govelrnmen to Stuyvesant. He
. paused for reply afier having thankqd the people for their
attachment and fidelity, for he exp%cted obeseguious ap-.
proval of his sdministration, though he well knew that he
was the mosgt hated man in the ¢ommunity. However, in-
gtead -of shouts of approval, s owts iof dissent went up
from the criowd on all. sides. oth Melyn and Kuyter de-
clared that they had nothing t¢ thank Kieft for.  This
was a severe blow to Kieft's ¥ ity but he had brought
it upon himeelf. - i E

; i i :
rivaliKief% imew nothing about
the complaints concerning him that Bad been sent to the

"West India Company in October, {1644, Stuyvesant had been

present at the company meetingin Amsterdam when this
ion was taken by the

- communication had been read. Jo act
‘1 company concerning the complaints, gut Stuyvesant secured
a copy of this private letter 4+ that time. He had
brouglit the letter with him, and ati{this juncture he

i

showed the letter to Kieft. ; g

K#eft,%furious about the létterlof complaint, was
even more enraged when, a few days later, Melyn and '
;Khyteﬁ made formal request as epresentatives of the oﬂd
" board lof eight men for an inquiry ifto the abuses of
Kieft's administration. The & uses 1they wished studied
- dated from the time of his imp sitign of Indian tribute
_tn 1639 until 1647. They propoged to use the evidence
hus acquired with effect in Holland.

Until gtuyvesant's ar

|
i
i
I
1

| { | .
"aﬂ But Stwyvesant immediatelyltook ;alarm. If Kieft's
- administration was to be judgeq at the demand of the
People, hig own administration also might be subjected
Kiefte samg investigation. Thus he ichoge to side with .
ey and to consider Melyn an Euyter private persont
Withérttha% as members of the former committee of eight.
Stuygq walting to discuss the matter with his associates,
petitgsantse;pressed the opinion that it wag treason to
;canseion'a ainst one's magistrates whether there was
oo thor not. Thée petition of!the two
and higrgfqre rejected, and, instead of examining Kieft
howla b ouncil, the order wasigiven that Kuyter and Melyn
¢ examined about the ofigin;of,the Indian War.

L3 [ l

"malignent suspects" .
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Kieft then brought crimina] cha%ges against Kuyter,

and Melyn flor inducing other memberg of the committee ito
join with hem in making false! statements to the West
India Company. He demanded-th#t thise two men should be

sent back fo Holland as pests and seditious persons. |

v i {
Melyn énd Kuyter were giveh.twe#ty—four-hours to

S file their reply. They made ajgoodidefence, and offered
¢ .%o bring forward the four survivorsiof the board of —
Lt eight men to testify that they!had éigned the document

of their own free will. But Stuyvegant had already given

judgment before the case was tfied, and, on July 25, 1647,
. ; fhese two good patriots were s¢ntenced. Xuyter was ban-
By ished for ithree years and was ined|{one hundred fifty
N guilders. Melyn was found guiﬁty of treason, false wit~
g ness, libel], and defamation. He wag banished for seven
. years, fined three hundred guilders; and was to forfeit
all benefigs received from theicomp$ny.-

Governgr Stuyvesant had pl%adedlwith the- Council %o

genterice Melyn to death and to confiscate his property,

but they could not be persuadei to give the verdict that

. he desired. Both Melyn and Xuyter were very popular in
New Amsterdam, and most of their fellow citizens kmew
that the two men had spoken no?hing;but the truth.

i et fnfﬂ?r."‘i’ﬁw P
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¢ Even the right of appeal to theifatherland was denied
by Stuyvesant, who said, addressing Melyn, "If I .were
g persuaded you would divulge our senfence or bring it be-
. .- » fore their High Mightinesses, I would have you hanged at
g once to the highest tree in Ney Net eriand.” In Melyn's
g_ ; own words, laddressed to the co pany1 he said:
% [}

Director Petrus Stuyvesaniy proceeded very
severely against the Eight Men, one of whom
was myself, elected by ithe dommunity, on ac~
count of twe letters written to your Honors,
in {he name of the poor, ru%ned community,

trepting of the cause of the war, disasters
» and| congequences of th% spamé, which letters
: had| been read by your Honord, and -returned
¢ to him, Stuyvesant. A8 a cdnsequence hereof
. 1 besides one Jochem Cuyter iwere by said
Stuyvesant banished from New Netherland for
& nhmber of years, accdrding to the sentence
.+ pronounced regarding the same, and departed

» for| Fatherland from New Netherland with the
- Bhip The Princess Amelila, in company with
Director Willem Kieft. : [

i
!
Y
b

i ! .
xnyg§%? Irincess Amelis was to |sail [three weeks after
The and Melyn received theirn sentence of banishment.

‘WO exiles were obliged to jarrange their affairs

| |
|
|
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beforé,leav%ng for the Netherldnds, jsince they would
probably bel away for a long time. 'Nelyn deeded his
home on Broad Street to his davghtex, Cornelia, who
had marriedEJacob Loper in Apr%l, 1647.

! ] i :
A @ictu&e hangs in the office off the Title Guarantee
and Trust Company of New York that dortrays the departure

T

of The Pringess Amelia from New Amsterdem, August 17,
1647, : Out on the river is seerl the waiting ship, flying
the flag of] the Dutch Weat Indis Company. On the shore

are agsembled two notable grouys. overnor Stuyvesant

and members of his Council, together with the ex-governor, .
yillem; Kief’t, are in the group gn the left, Kieft taking
home with him a fortune of 400,000 guilders. On the

right are the skipper, the banished citizens, Kuyter snd .
Melyn, and Melyn's young son, Cornelis. The artist,

“John Ward Dunsmore, has drawn @reely'upon his imagination

and hag given a graphic. picture of a stirring historic
event,. the pommencement of & voyage which was to have a
disastrous ending. i %

i ‘ !
The twogexiles bore themseives groudly at this leave-

A8 good patriots and as

Proprietors: of New Netherlend.' Among their fellow pas-
senger's were merchants and traders returning to buy goods
in Amsterdam. There were algo icolonists anxious to get
back to the old country because of their losses and mis-
fortunes in the New World. Many of the passengers were

4

entrusted with 1egallpommunications by their friends.

Porters transferred goods, bales of furs, and tobacco
to the 1ittle dock near the fodt of Whitehall Street and
thence by lighter to the Princ%ss. Among the articles
placed on the ship was a wonderful white beaver skin
tipped with yellow, brought inlby Indian and sent to
Holland as an unheard—of rarity. There was also Kieft's.
collection pf minerals, including pyrites, which he be-
lievedlto be gold. Desides all the%e things, there were
maps and degeriptions of New Netherland which would now '
be priceless. , F'

Finally, amidst rin‘gingrof!belli and firing of cannon,
The Prﬁncesb Amelia sailed dowd thejharbor on August 17,
1647, Cornklis Melyn wrote a &escrﬂption of the end of
that fatefuh voyage, saying, "Owing |to the nistakes and
wrong calculations we entered $he 'Verkeerde Canal',

where durinr the night the ship went %o pleces; many

people’ were| drowned, and after thaving floated hither and

. Eea for about eighteen hours, the Lord be
praised, I at last reached land, wheére I found Jochem
“gginland some other people."” ! The lcaptain of The Princess
Briata|had ost his reckoning in a gale and ran into

o oo ;1 Chapnel on September 27, 1647. The ship struck
g ck and ﬁas wrecked on the rugged coast of Wales, near
we-nBB.& s f i ' .
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Kiéft’s~conscience smote him as he saw death so near.
He turned to Kuyter and Melyn ahd salid, "Friends, I have
been unjust to you. Can you fo&giveéme?" Kieft, Bogardus,
‘and eighty others, including young Cornelis Melyn, were
lost.  The ¢lder Melyn, after being tossed "hither and
thither" by |the waves, was driven onto a sand bank from
which he reiched the mainland iE safpty. Kuyter had
1ashed (himself to a portion of fhe deck of the vessel.

Wnen the first dim light of da n- appgared after that
night of hoyror, he found himself flpating on a fragment,
alone éxcept for another figure;lash;d fast like himself.
Kuyter: called out, but, receiving no; reply, he believed
his companig¢n to be dead. The kuppoBed companion later
proved ' to bi s canmon which, wikh Kuyter, had been thrown
upon the beach by the violent spurf. | A search of three
days recovered only one item of] the phip's cargo, a small
box of' important papers, which Fuyter carried with him

to Hol}and.] ’ i :

"Sibsequently," wrote Melyn) "after much trouble, I
arrived in the Fatherland, where I advised with Jochem
Cuyterlabout complaining to their High Mightinesses of
the seﬂtencé pronounced, the viblence and trouble caused
us by the Director in New Nethefrlandl, with request of
Mandamis onlaccouptlof appeal, Fhich was grented us."

1 ]

Thé¢ West Indiae Company, ang%red by the loss of their
ship, greatly regretted that while sp many fine men were
lost tho rebellious bandits shopld sprvive to trouble
them with their complaints. The company agreed with
Stuyvesant that no appeals should bejmade to the home
goverqment.i Thug, recognizing the futility of appealing
to thé West|India Company, Kuyter anfl Melyn ignored 1t
and took theéir case directly to| the Btates-General.

. | ) l

Thé sto%y of the misfortuneE of the two exiles had
attracted much attention in Holl and.! Members of the
Statestene“al were inclined, t erefbre, to listen to ,
Knyter;and %elyn with interest.. So buccessfully did the
gwo men plead their cause and ‘sp muc influence did they
tring $0 bear on William, Prince of Prange, that the lat-
ler se@t a letter to Stuyvesant on April 28, 1648. The

ettgr:?nfo ed him that Kuyter and Melyn had received
. ngggmtsglon o return to New Netherlahd and that he was
‘colonzé%Ole t them, Full enjoyment bf all the rights of
to apc: 8 was granted to them,'and-S@uyvesant wag cited
werepggaﬁea eghedﬁagugtto jusxtgg hip acts. Theseiozdgrs

served on Stuyvesant| . ergon appolnted -
by Melyn and Kuyter. v j v Ey P P
- ' Vol ! .

'Prepiiégas &r;anged that. Kuyter| should remain in Amsterdam,
the pat toiwithetand any treac&ery r arbitrary act on

Amﬂteraamof Etuyvesant. Melyn pas tp return to New
£rom Williw h the letter of.satety that he had recelved
Melyn ¢ an of Orange., Armed with these documents,
E Baileq for Manhattan in the»wipter of 1648-49.

. i '

-

£



. what hai occurred in New Mmpterdam during Melyn's
voence? Leb us consider this while! he crosses the
ylantic, again enroute to the New Wbrld. The West
ia Company pelieved that the: appo ntment of a Vice-
{rector ond a fiscal, who woulf con titute a Supreme .
sunoil alodg with Governor Stuyvesaht, would be 2 cheﬁk
¥ . governor's pOWeTs, but Stuyvebant's personal force
this check. The colohists: were in serious |
iy raits because of all the;r,past suffering, -
nd their money troubles were not eased when Stuyvesant
aced! taxes on wine ond other beverpges in order 1o
ay for various public works. The gpvernor also made

Ybor! regulations 1o prevent stuggling, end he forbade
he sale ofiliquor after nine in the| evening.

= r

Some regulations were certainly hecessary and de-
able, since one~fourth of the compunity’s buildings

s devoted to the sale of liqupr, ahd drunkenness was

besettihg sin of the people of Npw Netherland. But

- citizeng resented +the new rules,; the taxes imposed,
Stuyvesant's dictatorial policy.| The exile of the

y mubineers did not improve matters, because the people

| beén in!sympathy with thel | criticisms and in their
jends ., i (
: Stﬁyves' tis autocratic methods were forced to yield
-the;needi for money, money to. repair the fort, money
finish the church, money foracouniless other purposes.
Cotincillors told the governpr thht if he wanted %o
se¢ honey!he must allow the people] a voice in the mat-
Jtuyvésant, in accordance! with; this advice, directed
community to chooge eighteen of their best men. Out
thig number the governor chose nine men, who repre-
ted|the herchants, the farmers, a d other citizens of
Amgterdam. This body of nine me could meet only
9 convened by the governor, couldl discuss only such
ters as ﬁe gaw it to lay before them, and could
t only 4s long as he felt ntecess'arye
4 i | . 5 . |
Thé newégroup of nine men mﬁt in! the schoolroom of
: st. DBecause of illness,| Stuyvesant could
guperin end the deliberations oftthese'men at their
0 e?tiﬁgg One of their first acts was to refuse the
: i 8 Tequest for money tol repajir the fort, on the -
9 ?at!it was the duty of 'the West India Company to
hi dor;the defence of the colonfists. However, they
, tg‘ t¢ ralse part of the %mounw necessary  to com-
~the church and to improve. the Fchoola
1

-

m?gdgg}$nlsts were in distrbss because they owed the
n ompany thirty thousand ilders. Thus the
fgg pﬁsed that a delegabion ghould be sent to
Yony Endew Netherland to statel the condition of -
ch ald to ask for reforms. %tuyvesant demanded
® | delegation was to be sent in his own neme,

H
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and that difference of opinion brought about a deadlock
petween the governor's autoeratic mekhode and the people's
democratic ldeas. .Van der Donck, ong of the nine men,

 went from nouse %o house, asking quebtions and making a

note of the ! sentiments of the peoplei in order to ascer-
tain the will of the majority. | But,|since it was
Stuyvesont's practice to disregard tPe will of the people,
ne charged Ven der Donck with %ryingl o overthrow the .~
government.§ At this trying moment the exiled Melyn re-
appeared on the scene. His arr val beemed to give a new
pspect to affairs, and even Stuyvesant thought it best

to ceage an?oying Van der Donclk. !

Apparently Melyn had landed. in Boston. Triumphant
over his vietory, it is said that heishowed his papers
in several places and that he boasted of the bright turn
in his,affairs when he met one pf hip fellow townsmen in
New Haven. How natural that wasi Having been wnjustly
sentenced and publicly denounced as & traitor, he would
wish to have it known at once that h? was vindicated.,

Melyn reached Manhattan on~hanua%y 1, 1649. ‘Twice
Stuyvesant gent to demand all of his; papers, but Melyn
gave up only his passport, saying that he would produce
the other papers in due time, in thejpresence of %the
Council. The governor would haye thrown Melyn into jail .
then and there if Van Dincklagen had{not protested. The
next morning, when summoned again, Melyn appeared before
the Counciliand delivered all the orgers and dispatches
that he had ‘brought with him from Holland. Governor
Stuyvesant promised to obey these orfers, but he refused
to_exonerate Melyn as publicly as he{had condemned him.
Melyn wished to have the acts of their High Mightinesses

read and exglained to the commonaltbyiby the nine men.

:imblefat the church. His inteht was to have his com=-
lﬂﬁiognread to the people in opder to vindicate his own
Plans dnd practices and thus ki}l or!|suspend the orders

:itghegstatqa-General° But he tilllhad Melyn %o reckom
. E i 3, - 3
[ § !

} F - '
the gzl{n had in his possession|the mandamus igsued by
dtes—General, which recitéd th¢ grievances of the

T o t '
On MarcH 8 the governor sum@Oned%the citizens to as~

a
- ‘8ppellants, the causes and results of the war that

G

dgxzziqth%ﬁft had commenced against|the Indians, and the
who alﬁeag the province might be magtered by the English,
sunmoned S%:knew its attractiong. The document also
defend ‘the quesant and the members of his government to
Melyn's riﬂforesaid_complaintsiat The Hague. It was
whom he privilege to have the mendamys read by anyone

Be might select. This was his gpportunity. Three

é ' oo
.
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pundred people were assembled in the church. He handed -
the document to Van Hardenburgh, who was invited to read
it in the plesence of the assembled ‘people. .

i ! ; :
Governotr Stuyvesant asked Melyn whether he intended.

4o have the!mandamus executed 2t this time. When Melyn
gaid that hé did, Stuyvesant sn@tche? the document from
Van Hepdenburgh's hands S0 that, the seal hung to the
parchment ih halves., A hubbub arosel. Melyn placed a

copy of themandamus in StuyVeéant'Sghands after the

overnor was advised to show more reppect for their

Bigh Mightihesses by those standing next to him. Van,

Hardenburgh;was again given the original manuscript. He

read it alowd and then asked for Stuyvesant's answer.

The governor replied, "I honor the States-General and
. ghall obey their commands. I sPall %end an attorney to.

sustain sentence."

R T, B

1 .

3 : i

13 : This was ‘the only reply that Stulyvesant would give.

%ﬂ : Both he and his Secretary refuged to give the written

f enswer that Melyn demanded. The other members of the
Council explained their conduct; as they thought best.

~ Only one acknowledged that he had erred. The others
would give no satisfactory reply. The mandamus 1s now
in the library of the New York Historical Society. The
large sheet of vellum bears witnegs to Stuyvesant's ir-
reverent grabbing. '

On August 10, 1649, Stuyvesant s?nt Secretary Van
Tienhoven t6 represent him before their High Mightinesses.
The gOVerno¥ sent a letter to tbe Sthtes-General oS-
tensibiy in}acknowledgment of the mahdemus, but, in
reality, the letter was filled jith insinuations agains®
Melyn. Stugvesant reported in this letter that Melyn
had reyurne through New Englanb parhding the writ of -
:_%:ndamus before the English, to, the 8iscredit of the _
. 1nt°h Vest india_Company. Fort&nate!y Melyn had friends

New!Netherland as well.as in Holland, and they wrote

1etter? in %is deﬁensea‘ - §

! ]

o tne Melyn himself reported tha%fStuy&esant had treated
FT writ ofwmandamus with disrespect? And furthermore
oo Melyn wrote: o -

S

e { Herewith, in the vear 1648, we rebturned
| ¢ to New Netherland, in the hope, in the
, fut%re 16 be permitted with wife and
+ children peacefully to live on our own
' landl,.s . % i
! & But whereas said Director Lsed every means
; Sg sustain his unjust skntence, and the
toc#etary Van Tienhoven@(who% most believe
. calgz the cause of all disasters and
§ [ ities fallen durinF thi? time upon

| ' SR i
| . v
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New. Netherland) was by him sent to the
Fatherland to appear in his stead before |
their High Mightinesses., I resolved ‘
also to go thither, besides some dele-
gates of the community, in order to be
pregent in cases which might! concern me.

Public dpinion was now thoﬁoughly arouged. Encouraged,

herefore, by the results of the application of Kuyter
#nd Melyn to the home government, thie nine men prepared
e States-Genersl along with additional

petition to th , :
" and a "Remonstrance of New Netherland".

Observations ,
Y ts were signed by .the nine men and by two

hese docume ]
ho had previously served on the committee (presumably’

felyn and Kuyter). : |

: Va@ der' Donck and two others, one of whom was Melyn,
rere chosen to go to Holland to present these historic
cuments to the States~General. MNelyn went also to

lead his own cause, being weary of 'suffering without

1oa
ult of his own. These delegates sailed for Holland on -
st 24, 1649 and presented the Petition and Remon- -

rance to the States-General in Janpary, 1650,

The Petition enumerated the following causes for the
jor condition of New Netherland: unsultable government;
anty: privileges; burdensome &uties& long-continued war;
8 of ThelPrincess Amelia; superabhndance of petty
aders; great dearth in general; the insufferable arro-
mce of thée Indians because of; the small number of :
tch tolonists. The petitioners suggested the follow-
_remedied: exemption from taxes;' freedom to trade
hére; encouragement to fisheriesy free transportation
agricultyral immigrants; and settlement of boundaries.
 main demand was that the States-General should assume -
‘_ersﬁip and control of New Netherland and grant it a

Im of govérnment resembling that of Holland. They also
d ?hat the Indians had. never: been! troublesome until
£ty war had enraged them. The oply way to defend
province was to increase the population and to give
able lodal government. New! Netherland pled not for
Peﬁdeneé but for local selfsgovernment.

i
%§¢'Remgnstranoe, written by the!jurist Adriaen Van
nd Qg%;_&overed forty quarto! pages. It was a vigorous
algtiac#ing the whole policy of ?he West India Company
e‘afgtho the colony and giving:the best picture of
™ ti,rs in the colony at; that!time. It embraced
1éf§rt3§ of the country, its preducts, the aborigines,
goiey ites of the colonists, a Statement of the
1dss tho the soil, and a reviey of the sad and
s _ﬁ ravagances of the administrations of Kieft
e des,eiant. "A crying evil," said the Remonstrance,
iane Odig‘attitude of the govérnors, who act like
of K llangfﬁare that the;e is{no appeal to the .

\
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sﬁuyveshnt had been as tyrdnnicdl as Kieft in taxing

irithout their consent, and he was even more

finding reasons for prosecution. The faulis

of the governor and of other officers of the colony were

‘eot forth in these documents, gnd the crafty, intelli-

nt Vian Tienhoven was especially denounced. Unless mat
%hted, said the nine

; g€ _ :
g'ers affecting the province weqe ri
men, the En 1ish would socon taﬁe polsession of New ]

NethergLand.1 | | :

This perriod of 1648 to 1650 see@s to have been de-:
voted to an! airing of grievances in one form or anothex.
Tn 1649 'a satire was published which attacked the West .
India Qompany and urged the Stdtes—General to assume ?‘
gontrol of New Netherland. The satire, "Breeden Raedt"
i"Broaa Advice"), is presented iin the form of a conver—
pation between a Dutch skipper 'and & Dutch boatswain, a
gortuguese sailor from Brazil, '@ Swedish barber, a
Bpaniabd, a) French merchant, a Neapolitan, a Pole, a
gh-Ditch gentleman, and a poor English nobleman. The

kipper and|the Portuguese sallior take the leéad in abusing
he West In%

is Company. The satire @id not carry the
ame weight| as the simple and direct complaints of the
w Netherlénders themselves, but a rief desgcription of
helps tojilluminate the colonists' words and records
her writings.

1th some incidents not relateq‘in o}

i H t
=+ The firkt part of the dialdgue shows how the company
s conducting its affairs in Brazill. - The instances

ted of atrocities and corrupl practices are such as we
ght expect to hemr from one familiar with that regionm.
hough! the {llustrations are horrible, they are not more
orrible nor more coarsely described! than those of pre- .
nt. day historical works. Thei mainimotif of the dialogue
the . cruel and disastrous manhgement of the company's
?esgntat%ves in -distant lands. i

Th greéter portion of thé dialogue is devoted to
Neigerlqnd and its problems, Thé skipper says that
.aséaustéreturned from New Nethérland and has brought
a mumbgr of people who will complain of the present
He describes.the colntry|as one of the finest
iléhe sun and enumerates ité various products. The
aﬂmioi ieft's unsavory reputation and the evils of
*E”ugls ration are presented., Kieft's cruelty, they
;19% 8 ithat of the Duke of!Alvaj Stuyvesant's
aﬂtgar er, his firgt appearancein New Netherland,
bae nﬁélof'Melyn and Kuyter, the wreck of the
'itﬁa yg 8 return to New:Netherland, and the read~
Wilth 4 andate are vividly portrayed. The dialogue -
1 %herl edﬂpeakgr stating that the inhabitants of -
: ibputie are awaiting theoutcome of the appeal of
Y os with great anxiefy. The colony will
ed if no redress is given.
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Mahy commentators have regarded :Cornelis Melyn as
the author of "Breeden Raedt," land it is published under
his name. However, Asher, an expert commentator, does
not accept Melyn as the author of "HBroad Advice" for the
following reasons. It is entirely different in style
from the papers which NMelyn is known to have written be-
cause of its exaggerated accusationg and rude and violent
modes of expression as well as the dramatic form used.
The defence of Kuyter and himself which Melyn laid before
Governbr Stuyvesent's court, highly whetorical in etyle
and sprinkled with guotations from Clagsical writers and
the Apbstolic fathers might have been written by a Leyden
profesgor, says Mrs. Van Rensselaer. It would require
1iterary genius, she thinks, to pasg from such a style
to the'bold, roughly effective gtyle of "Broad Advice",
Since Holland abounded with professional pamphleteers in
the middle gf the seventeenth century, those who do not
believe that Melyn was the author of "Broad Advice"
credit!it td the pen of such a pamphileteer.

The aboye theory. may be corirect,: but, during the peri-
od devoted to seeing foreign lande ahd in the many long
voyages that we lmow Melyn tooki, he bould doubtless have
encounteredithe very men who take part in the dialogue.
He would also have learned how they would express them-
gselves, Furthermore, Melyn's own grievances and misfor-
tunes are presented in such detail and with such a per-
gonal note that I am convinced that if he did not write
the satire he must have given the material %o the actual-
writer, Thé pamphleteer himself must have been a man of
unusual intélligence snd ability. % _ 3
The fact remains that "Breeden Raedt" is published
under the negme of Melyn. He must haye been restless
during .thosg weary months of waiting|in Amsterdam. He
* was an#ious [that the public showld be acquainted with the
facts. | Why might he not have o¢cupiéd.himself'with the
presentation of his case in popular Torm? Naturally he
would have gdopted a different form in addressing com-

" munications [to the West. India Company or to the States-

General. He was the kind of man whojleft no gtone un- -
turned 'in order to effect his purposes, which were just
and right. | S T

| n ‘ o
The' dalﬁgates from New Amst@rdamgpresented the

Petition and Remonstrance to the Sta}es—@eneral in Janu~
ary, 1650, The West India Compdny was furious with these
envoys for biringing their case peford the people of Hol~.
land, &nd their sentiments are prreﬂsed in a letter to
Governor Stuyvesant, written in February, 1650. This
communxbatior contained the following sentences:

i P S
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Formerly New Netherland was! never spoken
of; and now heaven and earth teem to be
stirred up by it.....If we wele to relate
.511 the intrigues set to!work! by the said
deputies, Cornelis Melyn! and Wouter Van
iPwiller.....we should eifher not have
‘time ‘or our memory would! shrink from the _ .
tasksess A few geditious’ persons like )
Cornelis Melyn, Adraen Van der Donck and /i |
‘some ‘others leave nothin untiried to up- |
get every form of government, . pretending i
that they suffered under| too heavy a yoke. ]

S ; |

The management and even the future existence of the |

1 General. The company madé a vigorous fight on its own

- behalf, ' It sent a reply to the charges made by the New
Amsterdam delegates to the States—General. Then all
matters relating to the company #ere #eferred to a
Standing Commiittee. Mesnwhile, the envoys pressed for
a decision concerning their appe%ls, iaying that Governor
Stuyvesant was acting in direct opposition to the nine
man committee, who did not dare to exéress themgelves in

- the face of his enmity. % :

! ‘ . H
After consultation with dire¢tors of the West India
Company, the States~General issued thé following direc~
tives: no hogstilities against the Indians should be
undertaken without the knowledge 'of tlie home government;.
militia of the province should be enrdlled and armed;
gpod schoolmagters and three competenﬂ clergymen should
be provided; agriculture should be fostered; trade with
?razil should! be encouraged; the company should spend
- 1$£teen ﬁhous%nd guilders annually in transporting poor
£ o digranﬁs to| New Netherland. The States-General also
; 03 ered that New Amsterdam should have a city government
= . thsistlpg ofya schout, two burgomasters, and five schepens.
' Two nine men kere to continue in loffice for three years.
o ° ttbe governor's council weﬁe to e elected from
pe&nﬁe he residents of the countzy, agf'consent of the
vagrn Wag to{be requested before imposition of taxes.
0 e grtStUY?esant was ordered to return to The Hague
not gﬁ rt $o the States-General. Thig arrangement did
b ant 211! that New Netherland asked, but if 1% had

een carried out , : 4

ol th

_:br the time ﬁeing.e colonists wo?ld have been satisfied
i

. [
! I

z _ | .
o Btggdggéei 1650 two of the envoys refturned to New
~ oolony rejwitﬁ the Provisional Order cited above, and the
ey Beéao‘c-d° But Stuyvesant refusgd to publish the
use' it was not approved: by the West India Com~

Y, w R _
\%e hich was fighting against its adoption. Trading

{ by N
were eXpanded, but the autocratic powers of the

1
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West India Company was now in question before the States- . .
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Melyn cpbntinues his account. "@onsequently, about
geventy strong and with fresh necessaries for agriculture
I again qeti gailr for New Netherland with the ship named
the New Netherland Fortune." (Lord Van der Capellan had
purchased this ship. Evidently they were not disposed

o neg?tiat§ with the Company qpr mg?ns of transportation.)

Melyn says, "Whereas we encountered very bad weather
and unfavorable conditions, after much trouble, many dan-
gers, and out of provisions andgwate?, we at last arrived -
at the Red Island, where we were obliged to provide our~ .
selves with some victuals and whter,gand therefore to ex-
change some merchandise. We therewith arrived in New
Netherland in front of the Staten Island, where owing to
contrary winds and tides, we cast anchor. The people
velonging there joyfully went op,lanl, thanking God for
having been freed from the water and; the ship. .

H )

"Meanwhile Fiscal Van Dyck prrived on board with the
Sergeant and a few soldiers to guardjthe ship, so that no
merchandige should be discharged fropm the same. There-
after we arrived at the Menatané, and expecting to be
velcomed hyéthe Director as well as by the community and
all lovers of New Netherland and the|Company, owing to
the arrival ;of the ship and such a splendid multitude of
country people, consisting of farmers, farm laborers,the
like of whom, it was averred, had never yet been seen
(to arrive) iin New Netherland. {But 6n the contrary, the
Director beéan by manifesting his old hatred and partisan-
ship, asserting first that at the Staten Island some thing
should have ibeen discharged which looked like contraband;
second , thaq I should have soldigoods at Red Island;
third, 'that lone Casper Verlet, who, ¢aid to be part owner
of the ship, should have been déprived of his claimed
share of merchandise and ship; fourth that I had too much
encouraged the skipper in his evil idtent, and further
8everal allegations not worth while énumerating here, but

"hich'dan‘berseen from the docuﬁents’regarding the sanme.

_ "Owing tb these before enumerated causes, he begi
A ' _ : - gins,
:g:ogﬁg the fiscal to proceed ?ery rigorously against
gon P andggoods, attached everything, arrested my per-
’ sugrding me well with soldiers.
"As g cohse ; ; |
be nsequence, my newly ‘arrived country people
no%agetghgruFble; the desire for work, because I could .
®Xpence iie? they began to losd, to my great damage and
nake suah de;crew was arrested, 'and thus were forced to
nrreat);ca_eplarations as pleased the authorities; (which
: used me great expense to the crew, and for the

Shipte ' . ;
'Ounfiaczzgaéra’ up to the time when it pleased him %o
o

hi
. uge M

P and goods, and to appropriate the same to-
4 . . : . . Y

| |
| | ]
. ;
| |
| |
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. the Fortune had been obliged to stop at Rhode
{sland, it wae said that the slip hdd infringed upon cus-
toms regulations. The Company ,told :Stuyvesant that he
need not respect gsafe~conducts .given by the government,
so ‘he felt free to arrest Melyn, whd was obliged to put
into & Rhode Island port, on acharge of illegal trading.
This was Stuyvesant's opportunity to avenge himself upon
“and he proceeded in the most jarbitrary manner, ar-

Melym,: 7
'res%?ﬁg and, imprisoning the crew of ‘the Forfune and con-
demning and selling the vessel. i -

But this time Stuyvesant had to reckon with a party
‘who was in a position to enforce his rights. Baron Van
er Capellan immediately instituted proceedings before
the States-feneral against the West :India Company for the
41legal seizure of his vessel. He was awarded heavy
damages, anp the Company had to pay ifor maintaining such

‘8 despotic governor. %

And now, let us continue with Melyn's own account of
this affair. He says, "Not stopping at this, but for

the purpose: of absolutely ruining me, also my real estate .
_being at the Menatans, congisting off some houses and lots,
‘was attached and sold to my great dsmage, under appearance’
of "rugrant! of the shipper and owners; so that owing to
these befork related acts, I have eaearly perceived that

Because

for me there is no security at ithe enatans, owing to
these many arrests, citations, pummonses and molestations,
and I have resolved to quit the Menatans and thus wronged
and plundered to join with my wife and children, my people
in my colony on Staten Island. . :

"ind I left the Director at the Menatans with all his
proceedings; to continue as he pleased, without defending
*my,just cauge as it would not have done any good anyway."

| . : ) ;

It was Melyn's policy to maintain friendly relations
ith the Indians. As they had killed or driven off
elyn'g colenists and burned their hpuses in 1643, the
ndians thohght that Staten Island had become theirs
again.: In order to promote frisndship, Melyn gave coats,
Yampum, kettles and needles to the Ipdians in payment
'griWhgt they regarded as theirs by right of conguest.

e s2id that Melyn fortifiedi his house on Staten Island
: guardediit with Raritan Indians.; '

. . 1 S
rg°¢zln“ing Melyn's own accoﬁnﬁ, "and further intending
Sort gg r my above mentioned lopses and attend to the sup-

81y, ny yife and children, which had again beern assidu-

LundeTtaken by myself and! my people, and commenced

4

o
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4o cultivate the land, which had been laying so long
fallow, clear, plow, 8OW, mow,;threﬁh, make a harbor,
build houseg, racks, barns, for the :purposeé of lodging
the people and the cattle we were uging, as an ornament
of NemiNethbrlaqd and  an honor :and qredit to the Honor-,
able Comparny, and further as an incentive and spur to ..
all the othﬁm_country people, as well as villagers and
detached farmers, and even to {those larriving from Menatan
jtself, who; were surprised at the lgrge crop of grain -
yhich had this year been produded through our diligence.,

; ‘ i { :

#"fhere had been commenced dixtegn handsome farms as
well by myself as by my children, ag also by the people
taken slong by me for the Lord .Van der Gapellan, and sent
over by His Honor, which farms were covered with twenty-
geven buildings; houses, racks ;and barns, each well pro-
vided with cattle, as well as Yeautiful plough oxen, -
milch cows, as calves for increase, .80 that everything
began to be abundant on Staten Islarnd, and through God's

plessing I begen to recover my (losees.

"But Director Stuyvesant again Hecame active, as if
it appeared that my prosperity began to trouble him.
For when, in the year 1655, in August, he had received -
some soldiers from Fatherland by the ship, Captain Fred.
De Goominck, to sail with them %o the South River (the
Delaware), he despatched said Coominck with the Fiscal
Van Tienhoven and some soldiers to the Staten Igland for
the purpose of fetching me; but being ignorant of the
same, about two or three nours before, 1 had gone in my
boat to Menatans, in order %o dttend to some business
concerping ?y‘colony. Lot -t '

A . s

"The Director Stuyvesant met me with some soldiers,
and he, immedistely exclaimed, 'Take hold of Melyn, con-
duct him to! the guard house an&_sec?%e him well.' There

il

I was incarcerated till the return from Staten Island of

‘the boat with the said Captain Coomipck and Fiscal Van
Tienhoven. ; : , i o

H . H : : |
"He the%eupon convened his Council and the said
- Captain, had me brought before him, asked me, 'Where are
the lettersiyou have received from the Swedes?’ which
sounded to me as strange as if I had] been asked for let-
ters from the great Turck, end gave for answer not to

know of any:letters from the Swedes,| nor that I was ex— -~
pecting a,ny% ‘ i f _
{

1 L
i :

"You will soon be
ered the fiscal to
cure me well, I was
hold, and I wss not

"Dy thig said Stuyvesant feilied
ﬁéughtgto speak differently,' apd or
t%?e me conducted to prison and to 8
{hen conducted and thrown into a dar
see nor to converse with anyone."

: : ’ }

!

I
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This ldsted'for.twenty—fivé days without further
hearing until the gixteenth of  September. Stuyvesant,
said, "Upon the Island they have egtablished a govern-
ment dccording to thelr own will, (notions), also a

judicial court.”

Sueh a ‘course of action was the ‘privilege and duty
of a patroon. But Stuyvesant wanted to direct -everything -
nimself. Patroons who refused to surrender their rights
and make obeisance to him were regarded as enenies, And
this, doubtless, was the spirit that actuated Stuyvesant
in his treatment of Melyn on tHis occasion.

Delaware River. When lMelyn went back to his Staten Island
estate in 1659, he gnid that he had decided not to try to
obtain justice from Stuyvesant. Melyn left the Governor
to his own "proceedings". Therefore we must briefly out-
line those "proceedings," for we shall see that the culmi-
nation vitally concerned Nelyn. ; o

In the ¥irst place Stuyvesant went %o Hertford in the -
autum- of 1659 for a conference with New Englenders about
boundary lines. According to g tentative agreement, the
English were to have all of Long Igland east of Oyster
Bay. This arrangement deprived the Dutch of their wampum
factory. On the mainlend the dividing line ran north

from Greenwich Bay and nowhere came iithin ten miles of

the Hudson River. , !

Then, t¢o, Stuyvesant went on an| expedition with one
hundred twenty men to get from the Swedish governor a -
recognition;of Dutch title end o arrange with the latter
about the exclusion of the English from that territory.
He pulled down the old Dutch fort and built a new one be-

" low the Swedish Port Christina.: But! the cost of this ex—

pedition wasg great, and the Company reproved Stuyvesant.

at The comqercial antagonism between England and Holland,
1egpgtgs abqut fisheries, and the dominion of the seas
ont g:war between the two countries;, although Cromwell

of tg no war with a Protestant, power. The first effect
s i-war Was to establish Stuyvesant more securely in
Statp ace, for at the urgent plea of|the Company the
States-General rescinded their orderithat Stuyvesant o

should ‘give Jan mccount of his administration at the Hague.

Tg: 22?PEHYESent cut some soldiérs for the defense of
ony, 'and Stuyvesant was told o cultivate trade

: ‘ﬂ. ;
_ th the English but to watch them carefully.

i
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In 165% New Amsterdam was incorpprated. The magis-
trates were sworn in, but Stuyveeent insisted that he
had the right to preside at the meetings of the magis—- |
trates:and that he and the Council cpuld make whatever
laws they c;ose. : 5

 The creation’ of the municipal board was due mainly
to the;efforts of Adriaen Van der Donck, who, while he
was detained in Holland by the enmity of the Company,
nad tried té obtain justice and| liberty for his fellow
colonléts, ‘When Van der Donck was permitted to return
to New. Amsterdam, the Company made him promise not to
meddlei again in public affairs and warned Stuyvesant to
keep an eyeion him. . Meanwhile the patroonship of this

public-spirited man was going to ruin.

Whén Kuyter returned he must have made peace with
Stuyvesant, for he began to cultivate his farm with money-
obtained frem three persong, one of whom was Stuyvesant.

! : ' } :

The denger of war was the pressing concern of New
Amsterdam when it became a city in 1653. Stuyvesant.
mushered and drilled a burgher guard of one hundred four-
teen men. A high stockade and = small breastwork were
built outside Fort Amsterdam so thatd all might be pro-
tected from attack. This wall, builit of thick planks,
gave' its name to Wall Street. The expense of building
this wall was met by forty-thrde of '‘the richest cltizens.
Hendrick Kip was one of this number .’ ‘ S

Rumors were circulated that Stuyvesant was ineiting
the Bastern Indians to kill all: the English. Though _
- these reports were denied by Stuyvesant and Indian sachems,

New Haven, Connecticut, and Plymouthi colonies wanted to
attacki the Putch. But Massachusetts blocked that plan,
saying that! there was not gufficient evidence of such a
plot t6 justify war. Neverthelless, the story of. Stuyve-
Bant's plot!was believed in England,: and Cromwell sent
four ships with four hundred scldieris on an expedition.
against NewENetherland. Six hundred soldiers were ready
to sail from Boston on the very day ithat word was re- ‘
ceived fromi Bngland that peace had been concluded between

England and%Holland. ' !

dr dInL1654§a ship was sent from Sweden with three hun-
Ste fifty polonists to join their countrymen in America.
IWTE¥VGSant peized the Swedish ship near Staten Igland and
'16548 for orders about this outrage.. On Christmas Eve,
rou] Btuyvbsant sailed for the Barbadoes and did not
donaT s W0G1Y July, 1655. When he gotb back he found or-
Dol rom the Company to drive the Swedes out of their
aW&FB,River settlements. : .



36

with three hundred fifty sgldiews Stuyvesant set out
on the expedition againgt the Swededq, but, before a blow
had been struck, the Swedes submitted. Some swore alle-
iance, to New Netherland; somegretugned to BEurope. But
fhis bloodless war had faken Stuyvedant away at a critiw
¢al moment. It was only a few days before his departure
on the expeflition against the fGwedes that he had summoned
Melyn to Ney Amsterdam, had acoused thim of plotting with
the Swedes,i and had thrown him into prison.

i | . { :

Couriers were sent to recall Stuyvesant from this
expedition,! for Manhattan was in a dtate of wild alarm
pecause of the uprising of the River Indians. Nineteen
hundred savages had gathered along the Hudson, and  seven
hundred or eight hundred Indiens had landed on Manhatten.
To avenge the death of a squaw whom Ven Dyck had shot
vhen she was stealing peaches, the Indians killed Van
Dyck. Van Tienhoven urged the burghers on until they
got into conflict with the Indians. i And it was then that
Melyn was ih prison, where Stuyvesant had put him before
starting onihis expedition agagnst e Swedes.

| !

. 4 . ' 4 .

. And now! we will resume Melyn's an account: "On
September 16, 1655, when the savageg had set fire %o all -
buildings around the Menatans and killed and murdered a
large number of our people and 'the whole country (words
obliterated) interceding and running to and fro of my
wife and children ags well as others, permitted me, under
certain conditions, to leave tie ho#en ' :

"I! then immediately departed for Staten Island %o
see whether' I could save my people, houses and goods
from the sa?ages: but in vain.™ :

The Indians had retreated %o Pav%nia, killing, burn-
ing and destroying as they went.’ Tth they crossed to
Staten’lsla?d, = ! ,

| E i ‘ |
th Melyn says, "For a few days{lateL the savages arrived
4 ere in.gréat numbers and commenced| to attack our people,
0 set'fire!{to our houses, stacks, bhrns, mostly full of
grain, igo that the people were pbliged to seek refuge in
m{ house, which they (the savages) also succeeded in set- .
usng afire.] And when the cinders began to fall down on
the ¢ were forced to leave 1t and obliged to break through
Btang%Vagesﬁto enable us to retire tp another small house
ime iﬂg close to the shore. Here we held out for some-
rom MQnger hoping meanwhile tb receive some assistance
calledgnat JGEI. But all in vain, At|last the savages
" grent %;ut o us that if we desired guarter they would
other 5. e same to ug; whereupon we resolved, ag we saw no
Bixteenefugé’ because from our number already fifteen or
Rephews gﬂréons. among whom my son, Son-in-law and -two
ad;been shot dead, besides gome wounded and thus

| |
. |
' |

t
] .
;
!




fifty~one i& number went into'céptivity among the.savages,
yhere we remained thipty-one days, until I had raised a
ransom 0F about 1400 guilders for myself, wife, son, and,
son—in-law, ‘which was to be paid if we did not want to be
burﬁt alive iin a fire, which for this purpose had been
already prepared and was burning.

"Sﬁbseq&ently arriving at the Menatans, as miserable
as we well dould be, we noped t6 enjoy some quiet after
our sad imprisonment. But the day after there arrived
at my lodgings Secretary Van Kenven with a gergeant in
command of goldiers, armed withi firearms and sword, say-

‘Melvn; the Director sends.us hither and lets you
ing, et yo ' for the sav-
know that you must t?y.?o flnd more ransom, ord. 2 ia
ages are not yet satisfied’, and forced me imme iate ¥
to go in gearch of sixty or seventy ggildeys add;tlonal
payment, if I did not want to be put in jail again. It
appeared to me somewhat susplcious that the savages were
so bold, and at the Menatans, through the servants of
the Company, dared %o vextmg sti%l fuither;d(it gccurgzg
to me) that:the same migh ave: been: trumped up in or .
tg at)once ruin me, I submit to your Honors' judgment,
after all that had befallen me, and I being in such a
sorrowful, miserable condition, my children and people
mirdered by the savages, the houses,, racks, barns, to
the number of twenty~five, burnt, the people, cattle and
farme destroyed, my goods stolen, anfl in place thereof
debts incurred for my ransom, and refsaining the bitter
hatred of the Director, I have resolyed to quit the Mena-
tans, in order not to perish absclutely, with wife and
children, amd for the time being, ‘ot put myself under
the protection of the English; and consequently departed
with my family for New Haven, until I shall have found
opportunity and means for the trip hither. MNeanwhile
meking your;Honors acquainted with my distress as related
heretofore, with humble request to sustain me in my just
gguse igainit the aforesaid Petrus Sigyves;gt,trggarding

e evil acte and great damage unjustly inflicted upon
me, and to assist ge in regaining myj own, in order with
the same means and your Honors' assistance to refound my
Mined colohy for the third time, anfl $0 restore the same
to its, former condition. ]

The Remonstrance and Petition of Cornelis Melyn to
ye West India Company in Amsterdam. | Ano. 1659,"%

“ And how'had others fared as a fe%ult of the Indian
Prising? Other plantations were sacked, though their
People. escaped. Within three days fifty to one hundred

colonigts h . ‘ , !
beern captugggﬂbeen xilled, and?ope h?ndreq £ifty had

: . » ‘ :

Sty Perhaps, the results might have been less tragic ha?

tuoivgiant been at his post when the Indian uprising ‘
[i

ace.' But now that the damage had been done

: S
| S
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stuyvesant and his Councillors had to decide whether it
would be wise for them to attack the offending tribes.
ey decided not to sttack the River Indisns but to be
more cautious in future sbout admitting Indians to the
settlement.;'From that time no Indian was allowed to
gpend the night in New Amsterdam. But this restriction
did not help outlying settlements.

Stuyvesant treated with the| Indiens in regard to the
return.of the white captives, Not all of the captives
were rescued, but geventy of these were exchanged for
ammunition, iand that only gave the Indians greater ad-

vantage in ?ther‘raids.

Tois Indian attack of September 15, 1655, was a great
vlow to the:colony. TYears would be required to bring the
provinee back to where it was before the Indian foray of

| 1655, :Nevertheless, in gspite of disasters, distress, and

the menace ¢f Indian attacks, New Netherland prospered

during the latter part of Stuyvesant!s administration.
Struggles for a measure of selfw-government continued, _
but courage:and energy revived with ‘the granting of munie-
cipal privileges, the relaxing of monopoliesy and . the im-
pulse to emigration given in Bolland] by the efforts of
Van der Doneck, The printing priess did active gservice in
promoting emigration. In 1660 ‘the population of New
Netherland was between six and iseven thousand. '

Stuyvesant had bought the tract bounded by Bast River
and Fourth Avenue reaching from Fifth Street, and had
built a chapel for the people where 3t. Marks-in-the-
Bowery. now Btands. - . _

After the destruction of his colony on Staten Island
and his escape from his Indian captors in 1655, Cornelis
Melyn and his family moved to New Haven, where he and
?is son Jacéb took the oath of pllegiance, April, 1657.

n 1659 Melyn was in Holland sgain, and at that time he
agreed to mhke over to the Company ‘the rights in govern-
ﬁ:ng, the privileges, prerogatives and exemptions which
o ad-held as patroon since he had geceived his patent
themCGOVePnpr ¥ieft. In consideratibn of this surrender,
rest ompanyiagreed to pay %o Melyn 1500 guilders and to
Amatgiga$h§£?°ﬁe§ received for icertain houses in New
8gainot Melyi? tuyvesant had @old ?o gsatisfy a judgm?nt
. |
Driviiger stating that Cornelis Melyp surrendered all !
enJOYBdgeS:iexemptions, and jurisdictions which he had:
na SoC as Patroon and the sum paid for this surrender
OOFtrac? continues: 1 i : |
?ehﬁor the future as s free coloneer and . -
aﬁ abltant for himeelf and his successors
' 8hall hold and possese 88 free and legal
.1 "

| 1
' !
; ,
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esthate ye lande, houses and lotts, which
he hath there in ye sd. Colony and hath
hitherto made use of and which he ye?
shall be able to improve (and by others |
not| posgessed) they shall enjoy ye suc- ]
. cesbion 'thereof or by will,...agreement
! or &therwise, may dispose thereof as .
according to articles...granted to ;
' Pattoons and Coloneers.s. | o
From that time Melyn was to hold his lands, houses,
and lots as,a free colonist, but he was no longer to be
- regarded as a patroon. The Company also ordered that -
Stuyvesant should in future refrain from all strife, and
that all differences, both public and private, between
the Government and Melyn should be forgotten. A copy of
this agreemént is owned by the New York Historical '
Society. Stuyvesant'was informed of, the surrender of
Melyn's pat$oonship, October 9, 165%.

From Stuyvesant's correspondence; with the Company we
find that Mélyn understood this agreement to mean that
‘he surrendeted his special rights and privileges as a
patroon, not the original grant; of land on Staten Island
or any portion of it. Because pf the devastating mis-
fortunes of|recent years and the death of his partner,
Baron Van dér Capellan, Melyn had decided %o surrender
the rights and privileges of a patroon. But he intended
to resume the cultivation of the land as a colonist when

circumstances should permit.

P

But theCompany claimed thal Melyn had relinguished
all lands 1ying fallow and uncultivated. A4s no part of
the Melyn egtate had been cultivated since 1655, that
would have meant that Melyn had sold! this vast estate on
which so mu¢h money and labor hpd been spent for the

 paltry sum ¢f 1500 guilders and the restoration of cer~
tain housesiin New Amsterdam. In 1657 the Company pur-
‘chased : the é¢state of Michael Pauw, which included Staten
Island:and {he present sites of. Hoboken and Jersey City
for 26,000 guilders. Does it appear likely that Cornelis -
Melyn, | twenty years later, would have accepted 1500 guil-
» ders for hig Staten Island estafe? |

1 J . .
It has Aeen suggested that if the details of Melyn's
life in New |Haven were known they might form an important
¢hapter in the history of the conquest of New Netherland.
In theiRemonstrance that Melyn wrote as Chairman of the
%ommit@ee of Eight Men in 1647 he had inserted the warning
hat the English would take pospessipn of New Netherland
unless ‘the Company provided ablg and: honest Directors, and
gave t6 the |people & .voice in public affairs and adequate
Protection. | His subsequent observations snd personal ex-
Periences might have led Melyn o the conclusion that '

4

‘ | I
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New Netherlénd could never prosper uhder the rule of a
Company whose motive wasumoney-making and who granted

any popularidemands grudgingly-and under compulsion.

put there is no evidence that he ever conspired to fur—, -
ther the degigns, of the Bnglish' or that he was in the
1east vindietive, though his strong sense of justice had
led hifi in 1649 to insist upon public vindication when

1

he hadibeenipublicly condemned.’

Melyn went %o Holland again in 1%60 and visited New
Amsterdam in May, 1661, though he cohtinued %o make his
home in New:Haven until his death, which probably occur-
red in 1663% ’ : ! '

]

Cornelifs Melyn's traits stand ou in high relief. |
one ofthese traits was a hatrefl of despotism. His pa-
»ents had experienced the horrors oft Spenish despotism.
It is no wonder, therefore, that the! son should have iﬁﬁ
herited an ?bhorrence of tyranny. ‘
' 1 o ' Z

Melyn h@d not come to America %ol escape persecubtion
nor to workiout any political design of his own. He
came to develop a big enterprise in which were involved
not only his own success but thle happiness and prosperity
- of a gpodly!number of people. e pogsessed the ability
and the financial backing required for success. Perhaps
his patroonship like Van Rensselae ck might have sur-
vived had it not been 5o near to New Amsterdam, for in
his personal relations with the Indibns Melyn seems to
have shown good judgment. But after] Kieft's mismanage- .
ment, whichistirred up the savages tb avenge thelr Wrongs,
their loss of awe of the white man, gnd the acquisition
of thefwhitg man'e firearms and:fireﬁgter nothing but
militatry foice could keep the Indiang within bounds.

tion in 164% Melyn had becomée & DOPU ar and trusted fig-
ure in New amsterdam. We know that he was highly intel-
ligent and gublic—spirited. He' must also have been a .
friendly and genial man who inspired confidence. He had
found gtaun¢h friends and supporters; in Holland among
the nobles and shrewd capitalisgs who trusted to his
ability and|integrity in splte of the misfortunes which
:;?ﬂtually %rought 1osces to them ani ruin to him. From
v e manner in which Cornelis Melyn met his misfortunes
ti knoy what manner of man he was. o be sure, our pic-
inre of himiis incomplete, but go far as it goes, it is
disputably correct. ' ’ '
! !

After oL even before the deétrucEion of his planta=-

:

' ; i
don IniNew Amsterdam Melyn was the c%ntral figure of his
tig and becéme involved &b the putset in the struggle of
the geéple sgainst the petty despots set over them by
ompany { "Thig gtruggle,” says Inness, "lgnds an

[
E

o it et i i T



%
é?

ST

e BRI e

41

. of higtoric dignity to thé man, and he is marked as
gig g% the first in a long 1i§e of ichampions in the colony
of individual rights against Qrbit ary and irresponsible

poweI"-o . . . i ;

‘"he despots of New Amstepdam feared Melyn to the end,
After having been harassed and persecuted by Stuyvesant
with o persistency that seems almost diabolical, Melyn
was jealously watched by the Governor and representatives
of the Company during the years of his residence in New

Haven. : : ]

o i ’
Perhaps during those years as he sat in the meeting
nouse where the Rev, John Davénport still instructed his
people, Melyn may have forgotten fdr the moment, the disap-
pointments and calamities of twenty years. Theological
disquisitions may not have apgealed to him particularly,
but his own words indicate that he iwas a reverent and
good man, ' The story of Melyn's adventures reminds us of

St. Paul's summary of his experiences,

1 .
Thrice 1 suffered;ship&reck, a night and
a day I have spent in the deep; in journey-
ings often, in perils of water, in perils
of robbers, in perils by mine own country-
men, in perils by the Heathen; in perils
in the wilderness,; in gerils in the sea.

Is there not a close paréllellin this list of perils
experiencel by the Apostle an& the}trials of the Patroon? -
And both men were undismayed in thﬁ face of dire disaster.

.Corneiis Melyn, like his%deSc#ndants, must have had
his faults, But if intelligence, energy, -industry, per-
Sserverance; a keen sense of Jjustice, loyalty, integrity,
and dauntisss courage go to making of a fine character,
we may honor Cornelis lelyn., He had failed to realize his
dream, but!it was better tc have had the dream and failed

hen never|to have dreamed at alle | '
. ; | .
de A8 hag been said, Melyn had n# intention of surren-
iing the!vast Staten Island estate together with his
ggrrOQHShip Tor the paltry sum of 1500 guilders. There-

o in-after his death in 1663, his hidow and children tried
retiigain possession of his property. But after MNelyn's
grantem%ntlto New Haven, the provingcial government had made
Furthz 0 gsettlers, from time o time, of the Melyn property.
new 1510078 the English conquest of New Netherland and the
t1on oflesgthat had been issue@ gre
contipy, ghe Melyn claims; but ‘the petitions of the family
Thene o4y, with the coming of ‘sach hew governor, until 1698

ang o, Petitions will b | rorno ,
his children, e c;teﬁ ?n co{ sction with cho?_Melynr
' I
' !

! : !
;= S A
E ' 1 . i
i o i
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tly complicated the ques- -
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one wrier states that Jacob Melyn and his children

received land equivalent in amolnt tb that actnally cul-
tivated by his father. Lf. thati statément is correct,
the Melyn family would have received, a considerable amount .
of land, for ot the time of the Indian foray twenty-five
farms Were under cultivation on, the §21yn egtate. ‘In
cace that amount of land had been reptored to them, the
Melyn family would not have continued to petition the
government for a recognition ofj theip claims during a
period:of t@irty years. T |

. ; ! i

Nothing 'was ever done by BEngland, about the tentative
settlement of the boundaries between: English and Dutch
coloniés inil650. Bub when Charies II came to the throne
ne resolved to take New Netherland by surprise. He gran-
ted it to the Duke of York, and then|sent four shipg,
with five hundred men under the, commhnd of Colonel _
Nicolls to take New Amsterdam. | The English ships arrived
at Manbattah on August 29, 1664, Colonel Nicolls pro=
mised safety and good treatment, t0 all if they would qui-
etly submits - z § :

But Stujyvesant was determined noit to surrender. Gun-
ners awaited his orders to fire upon the English ships.
He sent represgentatives to ssk why al hostile fleet lay
in his harbor. Colonel Nicolls: eivilly explained, de~
manding instant surrender of fort and town. TFor two
days Stuyvesant stood firm, gending lto Nicolls a letter
setting forth the right of the Dutehl to New Netherland
and demanding that the English officers should await fur-
ther advice: from Furope, tor he felt! sure that an agree-
ment had beén made about boundaries between Fnglish and
Dutch possessions. Nicolls refused &o parley with Stuy-
vesant and $ave pim forty-eight hourp to accept his terms. -

The peo#le begought Stuyvesant ¥ yield to this gen-
erous foe. ;Then Dominie told the Goyermor that it was
wrong o allow innocent people 1o bejkilled %o no pur-—
Pose. StuyVesant listened, though ik must have been
1664 for him to yield to the inevitable. On Beptember 8,
Yoo} the fort and town surrendered. Without a blow.

w Amgterdam became New York. . \
yeargoloﬁelﬁﬂicolla wag Governor of gew York for four
est, o e won the hearts of the people, for he was hon~
, courteous, and tactful in his spttlement of all dife-

o} :
meﬁ:ltiis' |Though he did not believe in popular govern-
bly ’ 8 rale was limited by a Counecil and by an assem=

ceQQZE?ﬁted?bY the people. Governor' Nicolls was suc-
Bervias L, overnor Lovelace, who etarted the first mail
etween New York and Boﬂton,;January 1, 1673.

By ' : i '
mnlly?egged?eace of Breda in 1667 New Netherlsnd was for-
_ | @ itO BEngland. DBut th% difficulties between the
| - R
: L

i
i
[
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English and the Dutch, which hdd theéir repercussions in
America, did not end here. King Charles II and Louis XIV
had joined forces to destroy the Dutch Republic. Con-
gequently, on August 1, 1673, 4 Dutch fleet appeared in
the bay,‘prbpared to take New York. ' As resistance on

the part of New York was hopeless, the town again passed
into the hahds of the Dutch. Anthomy Colve was appointed
to be goverhor of New Netherland. 2hen the Dutch fleet
pailed back: to Holland. f ! '

Colve saw that steps should be taken for the pro-
tection of New Amsterdam, in case of an attack by the
English. Therefore, by his order, QOuses that were too
near the fort were pulled down or moved. Funds to carry
into effect| the Governor's policy were raised by special
taxes, and the property of French and English residents
was confischted. One hundred and ninety guns made it
dangerous for hostile ships to enter the bay.

But by the terms of the trdaty of Westminster, signed
in February, 1674, New Netherlsand again became an English
province. Unfortunately, the news of this transfer
reached New Ameterdem through Isaac Melyn, the youngest
son of Cornelis Melyn. When hils father and brother,
Jacob, had bworn allegiance to ‘the Mew Haven Colony,
Isaac was ohly eleven years old. Bub in 1674 he was &
man in his twenties and for soms years had been engaged
in shippingventures. He owned the iship Expectation and
algo & cottage on Broad Street, souﬁh-of his father's |
house.,. g . f i

!

A man n?med Sharpe, evidently aEEew Englander, who
had resided|in New Amsterdam under English rule, was ‘
barred. out by a Dutch edict of Decemper, 1673. Sharpe's
vife and children were still in New Amsterdam. In May,
1674, Sharpé sent a message to Goverhor Colve by Isaac
M?lyn, aski?g permission to enter Neh Amsterdam to see
his family.: Governor Colve reckived| the news from' Isasc
Melyn that peace had been made betwe%n England and Hol-
land the prjceeding February. But Melyn did not tell
the Governor of the promised suyrender of Manhattan to
the English, I3 1

¥ §

Apparently permission was grante% to Sharpe to visit
New Amsterddm, He arrived with many' letters snd des-
batches for [the citizens. Colve read all of these com-
mnications land after questioning Shhrpe he found dut
about the transfer of Manhattan! to the English, but he
ordered Sharpe to say nothing but that peace had been
made betweeé England and Holland. !

[

i ‘ - '
. Sharpe said that he obeyed $his injunction; but when
n Crowd .of Dutchmen went to Melyn's house, hungry for
8¥8, he told them that they had "slaved- and wrought too
' R o
L R
i !
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pard for the King of England" in the fortifications that
they had bullt, for the StateSAGeneﬁal had agreed to re-
turn New Netherland to the Fnglish, . Colve had sealed
Sharpe's lips, but he had not ﬁorbiiden Isaac Melyn to
gpeak pf the transfer, :

This information reised a great hubbub. The enraged
Dutchmen threatened to set fire to the town, pull down
the fortifications, and tear out the throat of the Gover-
nor who hadl compelled them to do all this work for nothing.

; :

When Colve heard of what was going on, he sent for
Melyn and questioned him about what he had said. As
Isaac Melyn did not deny having given the information '
that Manhattan was to pass into the hands of the English
again, he was put into a dungeon in the fort and told to
prepare for death. Within two days he should swing be~
gide the Frenchman who hanged in chains on the gallows.
A gruesome prospect for the young Dutchman who had done
nothing reprehensgible. : 1

[ . i :

On the following day, as Mns. Van Rensselaer quotes,
"Thig unfaithful, Judasly, and treacherous traveller".
affirmed hip innocence and said that Sharpe must have
spread the unwelcome news. This shifting of the blame
upon Sharpe; gives an unpleasant shock, even though Isaac
Melyn was facing such a terrible end without a shadow of .
vwrongdoing.: But we must remind ourselves that Sharpe
was an Englishman and owed allegiance: to Connecticut.

He had been: permitted to enter New Amsterdam for a limi-
ted time. Isaac Melyn knew that though Colve might make
it unpleasant for Sharpe he would not dare to take the
life of an English subject for wsuch a reason. The worst
that would come to Sharpe was exile. Perhaps, too,
friends had:told Melyn that others had heard the news
from Sharpe. Unless we know all the facts, we cannot
condemn Isasc Melyn for implicaping Sharpe when con-
fronted with such a fate. In fmet, it is quite possible

that Sharpeimay have told the news nptwithstanding his
Promisge. i . ; ,

]

the ét»all évents, Sharpe was summoned to appear before
permigverno# and was twice examined but without being
Shar ?ed to plead in his own defense. For three days
cousfg'was ¥Yept in the "inner ahd nethermost dungeon,
£rom tﬂgermgn to the Stygian Lake," and then was banished
R ee grovince for ten years), under pain of death if
Publishgg e& to return. As poon sa this sentence was
houses Bali hich was done with great solemnity, the town-
the town ringing three times so that the major part of
canoce andcongregated to hear it, Sharpe was put in a |
bY to hip gﬂnﬁ away without being permitied to say good-
amily or even to get'his boots and a shirt.
; LR : -

' L L. i
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Stuyvesint had longed to hang Cornelis Melyn, and
Colve would have hanged Isaac, had he not feared the
wrath of thp people. Though I%aac,ascaped henging, he
was sehtenced to "come every d%y when the burgher company
gre employed on the city works, and work with them until

the fortifications are‘completéd." ? -

£

N i i 1

Colve w%s determined to keep the people busy and
kept ihventing new kinds of work. Meanwhile, the people
cursed: the States-General, the TPrince of Orange, the
Dutch bommEjTidér who had captured New Amsterdam, and the
Governpr. They said that they would not surrender the
town, but would fight for it as long as they could stand
with one leg and fight with one hand. ' .

e ¢ A v

It is said that Colve did not criedit the report
vrought by Sharpe and Melyn, who could give no proof
that the papers which they brouight were not fictitious
and depigned to pave the way for an invaegion of New
England. S ; :

: ¢ . o :

The actiial sentence pronouﬁced against the two of-
fenders statesthat Sharpe had entered the city without
permispion,{ although previously banished, and that he
, Wwas cohdemn?d for fomenting mutiny and disturbance in
\ New Orange and elsewhere. If that il true, why did not
Colve send Sharpe away when he first arrived with letters
instead of pumping him for information and then permit-
ting him toi see his wife? ? b

L]

%
¢

iy

. Isaac Mélyn, they say, was sentenced for using very
seditious and mutinous language.” Probably Melyn did
taunt hisg acquaintances with having worked too hard for
the King of England. He had no, ides that the people
would be so:.stirred up by his wbrds,gand no idea that he
might ﬁe cowmitting a criminal bffenhe, Though he re-
gented;being forced to slave on| those fortifications for
: ' “°nth5i he knew that relief would come end his statement
h ould be verified., He had escaped an ignominious death
i and therefore could be happy inj spite of his unjust .
: Punishment, ! ‘ B :

T

i i

i S ,
New §n100t0$er, 1674, two Engligh frigates sailed into
of boo?k Bax. The surrender ofl the pity was an affair
Andr W8 andismiles and exchange; of cpuriesies. Majoxr
08;entertained the Dutch officials on shipboard and

¢
Gg%:ingifseﬁted his carriage an@rhorges +o the English

and ggg: more the laws of the Duke of York were proclaimed,.
freight ; M?lyn was free to load the; Bxpectation with
tor, gérn°§5EaSthamPton and sail eastward to see his sis-
the eldegz ia. Cornelis Melyn, born!in Amsterdam, was .
toen ygan child of Cornelis and Jannetje. She was thir

: 8 ¢f age when the femily came to Staten Island :

SRR o
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jn 1641, and therefore had vivfd megories of Holland as
well as of fhe wilderness that 'was Staten Island. The
horrors of &ndian raids and theg rin of their home, her
father's strenuous existence and overwhelming nisfortunes
as well as the persecution that he had endured in New
Amsterdam, &and the annoyances q;peryenced by the family -
all of; thest things et have left their impress on

Oornelia. [wenty-five troublous years had been spent in
New Netherland. Therefore sheiwouli not have been s0TrYTy

to leaye New Amsterdam in 1666

Coz first married Captain Jacobus Lopex.
Teft a' widow with two children in 165%, she afterward
married Jacob Schellinger, a merchant of New Amsterdam.
The reasonsifor leaving New Amgterdam in 1666 are not
¥nown. Inness intimates that the reasons for their de-
parture and the acceptance of these ewcomers by the '
English coloniste would throw light upon the relations.

of CornmelisiMelym, Govert chk@rmanggdlsaac Allerton,
{
i

| 1 i
E 4

Cornelia Melyn

and Jacob. Steendan with each othex with the New Havén

and Connecticut colonies. [

their emell|inheritences in New York, Until the removal

of the Schellingers to Easthamppon, both Isaac Melyn and

his mother had spent much time yith ornelia Schellingerl.
{ ! '

. . ) § 1 :
Isaac and Jacob Melyn wanted to ‘take possession of
1i

Jacobus Schellinger purchased a home lot of twenty
acres in Easthampton, on the noxrth side of Main Street.
The settlement was composed of rorty, thatched cotiages
and a church, the same church, perhaps, that had been.
established by Rev. Abraham Pierson jmore than twenty
years before. There were fieldp of wheat, rye, maize,

and tobaccoj and here and there| an orchard. '
! :

‘ ; Ii !
The Schellingers evidently met with a friendly re-
ception at Basthampton. Jacob Bcheliinger was one of
the well-to4do men of the town,: and there he lived and
prospered for twenty-five yearsh Cornelia Schellinger -
attained the age of ninety years. In contrast to her
earlier years, life at Basthampton was quiet and peace-
~ful. Her descendants in large numbers are to be found
in the vicinity of her Long Island home. In 1690, her
son, Abrshem, got a large grant of land and was a pioneer
settler of the village of Amagansetd.

to. Though the members of the Melyn femily did not aim
forPlam important parts in public affairs, Cornelis was
thaﬂ;d.to toke an important part in public affairs, and
11 ortuned of the family were marréd or ruined by pub-
¢ events. | Imanc Melyn's experience with Colve would

Eﬂgiish rule there existed the same causes for discontent
" egard tq taxes and autocratic rule, without popular
epresdntation. ! {

¥

naturally ldad him to, wariness in future crises, for under
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Isaac Meélyn married Temperance, Gaughter of William
Loveredge of Albany, and lived in his Broad Street home
antil his death in 1722. Then that property was sold to
: William Verplanck by Tgaac's only surviving child, Joanna
: Dickinson. ilsaac's wife must have died before 1722, as
there is no mention of her in cbnneckion with the sale

of this property. 1

It is said that two. other children of Cornmelis and.
Jannetje Melyn, Susannah and Magdalen, were born at Man-
patten and baptized in 1646, These daughters are said
to have marﬁied Manhattan merchants,;but nothing more
definite is known about them. . i

More is known of the older son, Jacob, than is known
of the other children. Jacob whas born in Amgterdam in
1640, .When Cornelis Melyn decided to live in New Haven,
his son Jacob accompanied him and tobk the oath of alle-
glance to the New Haven Colony,! though he would have
been only séventeen years old aks that time. In 1659,
when Cornelis Melyn went to Holland for a settlement of
hieg difficulties and a surrender of khe patroonship,
Jacob accompanied his father. e mubt have understood
that it was his father's intent;on to give up the privi-
leges of the patroonship but nog the; land which had been
included insthe grant. 5 i

ST RO e

A3,

_ In connéétion with the "Blue Laws® of Comnecticut, it
is related that during the early yearrs of his residence
in New'Havey Jacob Melyn was re rimanded by Governor .
Newman for kissing Miss Sarah Tuttlej Such an indiscre- (1)
tion on Jaceb's part was not unnatural, for the Dutch of
New Netherlsnd were called "the kissfing Dutchmen." There-
fore, dacob!s standards of propriety did not accord with
the Puritan standards of New Haven. | But after that epl-
sode Jacob probably behaved himself in an exemplary man-
Efr, for in 1662 he married Hanhah, Haughter of George
Hfbbarq, of |Guilford. Haansh's| sister had married

umphrgy Spinning. ' | F :

In§1665% Jacob Melyn and hi% wife and Mr. and Mrs.

T

oty e gt

T

A

ﬁgingﬁg joined the bend of pioneers|who emigrated from -

Jacobaﬁen‘c lony and settled at; Elizabeth, New Jersey.

dialectglgg;ihk%°W1edge of Dutch and] also of the Indian
: tthat regi

the new comiunity. gion made hi? a v?luable_mgmber of

L

!

E _ . - L
Jacogiﬁglﬂew York again under D@tch rule in 1673-1674,
one Of-thyn!was in high favor and wap appointed to be

- Ha. Ke e #schepens of the town, and captain of the mili-
(  chard, g :wued a four-acre lot with house, barn and or-
" and Bi'ht ract of one hundred apcres on the South Neck
;U8 -hgndred ten acres besides. '
. . E

dfgiadt st TR e

(1) v. Tottre ' L o
. Tuttle, g ; ' e

.. R s Geo, P Descehd%;ts of Wm. & Eliz. Tutile;
utland 1883, p. 603. Bach .fined 20 shillings. ’

. i !
H
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In_1669fJacob Melyn was partner in a whaling company.
Evidently he was a property owner, a'man of affairs and

a reqpéctedfcitizen_of Elizabeth until 1674, when he re-
‘moved O New York., For several years he resided on

South William Street., .Two of his children, Susanna and
Jacob,,wereébaptized in the Dutch Church, New York in

October, 1674; three other chilfiren,  Daniel, Samuel, and
Abigail, were baptized in sugusy, 16?7. s

1n 1668} 1674, and 1698 petitions were presented by
Jacob Melyn to the governors of New York, asking for re-
gtoration © the Staten Island estate of Cornelis Melyn

of which his heirs bad been fraudulehtly deprived.

In. response to the pétition of 1668, Governor Nicholls
gaid that a.convenient proportibn of land should be al-
lotted to Jacob Melyn. But evidently the Melyns did not
get back any of their lsnd at that time, for in a peti-
Tion to Governor Colve, April 14, 1674, Jacob Melyn re-
fers to the consent of Governor Nicholls that a consi-
derable tract should be surveyed for the heirs of Cornelis

, v ' '

Governor Lovelace also agrded to, confirm Governor
Nicholl's promise, though by that tipe the island had
been almost entirely apportioned to warious individuals.
On October ;2, 1674, the petitioners were granted a farm
of sixty acres each for the children of Cornelis Melyn,
provided note of such lands had been already granted %o
others, if the petitioners would agree to live on the |
lend and cultivate it. Another petition of Jacob Melyn
of May 22, 1684 was rejected because the land had already
been given to others. i 1 |

' ‘ : l » —

The lash petition of Jacob Melyn is given in full be-
cause it sepms to be such a godd prqsentation of the
gaie- }Jacop Melyn had evidently inherited one of his
Tgiherns characteristics - perdeverance in a good cause.
th 8 last petition of November 3, 1698, is addressed to
Boe Earl of Bellemont, Governor-in-ghief of Massachusetds

ay Colonie? and New York. ; '

"The huible petition of Jadob Melyn most humbly show-
:E% Eg?t your Petitioner's Fatger Cornelis Melyn by ver-
bearin adGrpnt from the West India Company of Holland
and Prg ate of the Third of July, 1640, was Governor
GWe,mmpl:'fi.ert:c»x' of Staten Island and jwas confirmed in the
ent and propriety thereqf by !Governor Eiefi by a

Patent - '
'asegg ggirpng date the nineteenth of June, 1642, and

" ment and Soﬁuiet Possession and Enjdyment of the Govern-

¥le of the sd. Ielanid as his rightf ‘ -
ane \ . 1d as g prightfull inheri
by t§é3?§§}-h° with hie peoyle?(weré) driven from thence
resettlod tﬁéa in the year 1643; and he was after that

| nereon with diveraebfamiliea,_his servants,

[ . i i :

| |
!
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until another quarrel was madeiat New Amsterdam with the
Indians, Anpo 1655 end were then cutt off upon Staten

o Island, having about twenty pegson5gslain, who were of

k 5, Melyen'ls children, Nephews, Servants and Tenants.

: The town copgisting of about forty houses, which were
purnt; and [the goods made plunder off, and yo' petitioner's
i sd. father and mother and two sons with all that survived
: yere taken into a barbarous captivity by the Heathen;

' Yor Excellcy's Petitir' was oné oI the sons who was much

i wounded but, recovered not without great difficulty.

¥ That his sd. Father...upon som¢ congiderations did af-
terwards, vzt. June 1%, 1659, Resign his Right of Governor
back te ed. West India Company ;of Holland upon sundry
conditions,iwhich were not all by them observed; But he

o ver sold his Right to the Lards of the sd. Island or'
any part of his Estate there, but expressly reserved the
pame to himpelf and His heirs forever as may appear by
the sd. Agreement between the sd. West India Company and
nis sd. Father, bearing the date of [June 13, 1659, and!
that upon the delivery of New York to the English. :

and Dutch Cpmmissioners expres ly confirms unto all the
Dutch Inhabitants, that continued there their freedome as
Denizens and the EnjJoyment of their lestates as before,
Yot he the pd. Jacob Melyen hath been ever since by Fraud
and Injustice denyed from the Enjoyﬁent of his sd. Father's
Inheritance, he being the righ@full%heir, and this not—
withstanding he hath made appliication to every Governor
that hath been sent thither by {the Kings of England; by
which meanshe hath suffered mich Damage; all which will
appear to be true by the Records of New York, Copies of
which have hitherto been denyed the ﬁupplicanta '
. "Yor Pe#itior, therefore, being %eli assured of yor
. chell 's great regard to Impartial Justice, most humbly
- BTaYet that Yor Excelly will take his case into Yor
Rgrioug condideration and permi% him to take out of the
necords coples of such Instruments and Papers &8s &are
cessary to prove ye Truth of %hat ne hath before sett

"One of the Articles of Agééemegt between the Enéiish _

I L

51 e RS

ggzghyin order to Yor Lordship's more full satisfaction.
I or Petitir hath a Right to the: soyle of the sd.

8land ‘and fhat h - _
8elf of the?same.ﬁ may be bette? ena?led to possese him

i ' i 'I )
. i , J?cob elyn.

From thi Lo,k
Mo ese various petitions it appears that the
gti¥§n¢§$i§£§“en§vir rsgeived agy part of their father's
be ' state, But nevertheless they seem to have

( E Gn‘mQGeraYely PTOSperOUS., E‘ ? y Be |
: ' i
| - Ity “ ! 3

Bamye] . ¥as Jacob Melyn's intention that his_son

- liﬂh°“1d be educated at Ha?ﬁwardﬁ(iollege0 In order

I
ﬁ
! 1

J el



| | 50
that Samuelémight receive adeqﬁate ﬁreparatory training,
the family mpoved to Boston in Samuel's youth. From the
¢ follovwing circumstance we knowgthat:this change of resi-
: dence took place before 1689. |

In 1689 the Leisler Rebellion broke out in New York.
At that time the Jacob MNelyn family were no longer resi-
jents of New York, for Teisler jaddressed two letters to
Jacob Melyn: at Boston. These Tetters indicate that Jacob
Melyn must have given Leisler dympathy or finencial sup-
port in this rebellion. Leisler poded as a champion of
popular rights. For this reason, probably, Melyn was in-
terested in his rebellion. IdkKe hig father, Jacob Melym
yas always interested in democratic ddeas. There was

' alyays discontent about taxes and dﬁties, and that gave
Leisler a following. But it seems strange that such a |

man could have held his power for nearly two years,

meanvhile imprisoning former ofificisgls, plundering homes,

shops, and vessels belonging %9 his iopponents.

! ! ’ .

But Jacob Melyn was in Boston and did not see what
was going on in New York. Posgibly the may have thought
that the home government would eveniually recognize
Leisler and that through him tHe Melyn heirs might have
thelr pstatb restored to them. ! But that is only a sur-
mige. Withbut some special motive it is difficult to
see why Jacob Melyn's name shoyld have been connected
with the rebellion. But it ig 'said +that his name was on
the list of those.to whom amnesty waes not granted when
the final reckoning came and Ldisle%-and Milborne were

condemned to death as traitors for baving fired upon the

King's troops and having refused to give up the city of
New York, ! i 5 :
: . ;

‘ , A o
But Jacob Melyn was not haled to judgment., His life
in Boston weknt on peacefully for many years after the
%eisle? rebellion was ended. He desired his son Samuel
gfhavg the! best educational advantages that the country
aiforded at:that time. But evidently Jacob had over-
estimated his son's ability. | :

e AR A e -

e e

§ .
claBSamuel elyn graduated at Harvard in 1696. In a
m&nu: of nine Samuel had the lowest gank. Among the
_elyncglptsqof Cotton Mather i a letter from Samuel
g Btandineggi g Mather's aid in gaining for him higher
B Melyn hg. But Samuel's plea was unsuccessful. Jacob
: tiom angd spent three hundred pounds on his gon's educa~
his familev,dently had expected Semuel to be an honor to
Yas 1ng Y.« Perhaps Samuel was lacking in ability or
diﬂ&ppo{ and dissipated. He was, at all evenis, a great
olntmént, end later he proved ?o be an utter failure.

o ] F . “ ) ¥ :
at Basgﬁ 1700 to 1701 Samuel t%ught the grammar school
' ¥y Mass. Possibly through the influence of his

' |
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cousing, the Spinnings of Elizgbeth, Samuel was asked %o
asgist Mr. Harrimen as pastor of the Elizabeth church.l
He maj—have;studied Theology under Qr. Harriman,  —

One of Samuel's books, “Thé Camﬁridge Concordance",
contains the following lines: § i
' Vith sine literis est mortid imago; at
Vith sine Christus est Morie pejor. :

91 Christum discis, nildil est si caetera mescis.

5i Christum nescis, niﬁil eit g1 caetera discis.

Samuelis Melyn
Liber ;
' Martii, 1,

. Anno Domini, 170Z.

! . '
After reading these lines one pities the brief and in=-
glorious career of the young mJﬁ. -

Samuel Melyn had charge of ithe Ellzabeth church. But
evidently Samuel was even more intemperate than the stan=-
dards of the times permitted. He lopt the confidence of
his people, and at thelr desire, his, ministry ended in
1708. After retiring from the ministry he was appointed
Overseer of the Highways, but even ih that he did not
succeed, for a bill was broughtiagai?st him in 1709.

Samuel died in 1711, His will, Adated May 10, 1711, .
expresses his faith in the Gospkl. MApparently he was by
nature religious, but evil was preseht with him, and in
his wealness he succumbed to his besstting sin of intem-
perance, Heé left bequests to several friemnds and the re-

mainder of His possessions %o his sister, Abigail Tilley
of Boston, | i f :

1
4

NPT l y

on Ab;galltTilley‘s gtory intreduces us to Samuel Sewall,
atetgf_the most interesting personages in Magsachusetts -
el at time., Samuel Sewall's Diary |gives not only &
hiaugble picture of the political and social history of
Fup h&Y-but also porirays his own evéryday experiences.
he iermore,;he frankly shows his own ruling motives and

hner workings of his mindﬂg | '

Melyin‘this famous Diary we comé intd contact with Jacob

conpinpe fter Samuel had gradusted af Harvard his father

193theret to} 1ive in Boston, whére hd was engaged in the
o hradb. For several years he lwas Constable and

detaily ¢ wag elected Surveyor jof t@e Highways. These

Helyn-\b?re of interest becsuse ithey wBhow that Jacob

naver%hal alﬁen.race and devoid of Puritan training,

Vo are fu§35:had good standing #in the Boston community.

¥ Yher convinced of this fact when we read in

; a

!
|
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gewall's diary that Mr. Melyn Had dined with him that day.
That was ini 1689. As a citizen of Boston for more than
twenty. yoars, Melyn would naturally have come in contact
with Samueli Sewall, who held numerous offlces, beconing
Judge ‘of the Superior Court in31692%and Chief Justice in
1718. . ; . .

} i

Judge Sewall had been involved with other judges in’
the Salem witcheraft tragedy. In condenning the so- ,
ecalled witches, the Judge had dvidently aoted according:
t to his light, but afterward he bitterly regretted his
P part in this affair. He wroteand ublished a recanta-
: tion of his%judgment, gtanding in church while this was
being read to the congregation. :
7o the practical and fair-minded Jacod Melyn such con-
demnation of witches doubtless ‘seened inexplicable, and
he did not hesitate to express ihis dpinion to the Judge.
The entry of August 12, 1696, in Sewall's Diary contains
this remark: "Mr. Melyn, upon ‘a slight occasion spoke.

: to me very smartingly about the Snlem witcheraft; in the
L discourse he said, 'If a man sHould 'take Beacon hill on's
back, carry it away and pring it to |its place again, he

. should not make anything of th%t.‘“g

Jacob Mplyn was doubtless ﬁeferﬂing to the case of the

Rev. George: Burroughs whose "preterdatural gtrength" was

regarded asl evidence against him In his trial for witch-
_ craft. Thig same George Burrovghs, jpy the way, was as-

gigtant to bthe Rev. John Wheelwright, exiled from the

Bay Colony in 1639 because of Hig theological views.

And this brings us back %o Judge Sewall, for his wife's

ancestor, Edmund Quincy, had purchasled the site for the
~ church where Wheelwright was pastor when condemned to

exile. Today we may see in the Quinicy church the brass
memorial tablet tc the exiled ﬁpstorr
‘ {

14 Though Judge Sewall was an &mpor&ant figure in. pub=

¢ affairs; it is with his matrimonial projects that we

are chiefly! concerned. ' His first wife, Hannah Bull, .
Eziiddaughtgr of Tdmund Quincy,. was phe daughter of John
dn hof pine tree shilling fame. Hal ah was his only
aas ger, and we all know how she wap placed on one scale
Wents lver shillings end sixpences. on! the other until she
Bl on and ithe coins went downi Wikh this dowry Hannah .

- ecame | the highly valued wife of Samuel Sewall,

though she did !
: 1id not 1liv her I
‘enith'o: h@a honors.>e to see aLer ?sband reach the

X i !
' timeﬁf;er the death of Hannah, ﬁhe,JLdge called several
( Eviaent§°nh¥rﬁ' Dennison, who had recently become & widow,
on of { e was received with favor) but when the ques-
nison 4o ezzproperty was congidered,| he wanted Mrs. Den-
*0 yidld certain points t? whirh she held. The

Lo
i !
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Judge 88¥8 °f§h9rv "My bowels yerh towards Mrs. Dennison;
put I think G?d directs me to desist.™;

Probébly it was legal acumen Bnd shrewd business sense
that stood in;the way of this union. Apparently Mrs. Dennison
was loath to have the match brokeh off, for one very cold
Sunday night she went to Judge Seﬁall‘g house to ask pardon
if she had displeased him by not tonsehting to his proposal.
But nothing came of this vieit, which she wanted to be kept
gecret.  The Judge says, "She went away in the bitter cold,
no moon being{up, to my great pai?. Igsaluted her in parting,.”

: ¢ i ‘

ind now, for the moment, we interrppt the Judge'’s account
of his proposals to relate the experiences of Jacob Melyn's
daughter;Abigail. About 1696, Ab;ga111Melyn married James
Woodmancy, who lived for several yearsafter this marriage.
Her second hugband, William Tilley, wap a rope-maker. But
in 1717, Abigail was again a widow. She was then forty
years of age, comely and amiable.! . !

Fot long After Judge Sewall gave uﬁ courting Mrs, Dennison,
he turned hisiattention to the attractive widow, Mrs. Abigail
Tilley. In Séptember, 1719, the Judge! called upon her for
the second time. He says of her,| "It peems she was born {dn
the Jerséys. :In her twentieth year she married Mr. Woodmancy."

: 1 |

] :

After thrée or four visite the Judge proposed marriage,
and in this gtance he was a sucpessfvl suitor. His Diary
records, | "She |expresses her unworthiness of such a thing with
mich Respect."! BEvidently Abigail%stoog somewhat in awe of ‘
the Judge, thdugh she doubtless agmired him and was flattered
by the offer ¢f marriage from a mgn who stood so high in pub-
lic esteem, i :

' ! '

At a,subsdquent visit the Judge gaye Mrs. Tilley
%ittle book, entitled "Ornaments for the Daughters of Sion", .
f{ Cotton Mather, a bock which the Judge had given to his
s et wife in 1702. That was indeed a|tribute to Abigeil,

f:r the Judge had been a devoted husband to Hannah Hull. A

cozddaY§%1ateﬂ he again visited Mfs. Tilley. His diary re-

tama b Eat Almonds and Reasong with Mrs. Tilley and Nrs. Armi-

whge' The Judge continues, "Diséourséd with Mrs. Armitage,
8poke very agreeably, and said Mrsilmilley had been &

gieag Blessing to them and hoped God wguld make her so ‘o me
v1eit§dfamily4“ On September twenty-fifth, Judge Sewall
Mre Tilﬂadawq Pemberton., "She applemded my courting
t ley," he says. "I thanked her;for her favor in
alning WHat I 1d." b |
liahgg Dctobeﬁ-IS, 1719, Jdudge Se#all“% marriage was pub—
» A8 Dr. Increase Mather cguld %et go.out in the
» the Judge invited Mr, Thomas Prince to be

|
]
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at the wedding and to nake thereconﬂ prayer. The diary
yrecord continues, i ‘ : :

October 29, 1719, Thanksgiving Day, between
gix and seven, Brother Moody' and I went to
Mrg, Tilley's. We were married by Joseph
gewall in the best room below stairs. Mr.
Adams, Minister of Newington was there, Mr.
Oliver and Mr. Timothy Clark, Justices, and
many more. Sang 12, 1%, 14, 15 end 16 verses
of the ninetieth Psal. éCous;n S. Sewall set
Low Dutch tune in a very good key, which made
the singing with a good, number of Voices very
agreeable. Distributed cake.

The very night of the wedding the bride became Very,
111. The Judge 8ays, "My Bride grew so very bad she was
fain to sit up in her bed: I rose to get her Petticoats .
gbout her. -1 was exceedingly smazed, fearing lest she
should have dy'd. Through the ‘favor of God she re- :
covered in some considerable time of her fit of coughing."

mnd then on the very next day, October 16, Governor
Shute, Governor Dudley and his Lady,: Councillors and
Ministers in Town with their wives dined with us. Had
a very good dinner, at Four TMables, two in the best room.
Tn the evening Mr. Oliver invited me and my Bride to -
Mr. Prince's wedding. Ve went helf way up the Hill and
my Bride could go no further; but was fain to return
back by reason of her great cold end: shortness of breath.

"Then‘Iiwent and saw Rev, TbomasiPrince married to
Mrs. Deborah Denny., Had a good supper and cake. Sung

:Eg:t two steves in fourth part of Ps. 73. I met the

4

" ;?au Oliver in the name of the Oyerseers of the Meet-

th%u g%se invites my Wife t0 sit in the Foreseat, 1

1o to Bring her into my pus, bub Mr. Oliver insisted.
anked him and the Overseers," ‘

tackngbibly Abigail Sewall recovered from the acute at-~
but frg llness that she had at the time of her marriage,
Bstweenmoth%t time her heslth must have been declining.
Tngreen October 20, 1719, end Hay 26, 1720, the Judge al='
Be1? i zﬁ?%l times to visits made by his wife and him-—
they dinede£housea of friends. ; As late as May 22, 1720,
the night fOEGther at Mr. Stoddard's. DBut he says, "On
rising of %i May 26, my dear Wife wab oppressed with a
midnight my‘ggm that obstructed: her breathing...Aboub
®8pecial] ear Wife expired, to our great astonishment,
‘ ¥y mine, May tha Sovereign Lord pardon my Sin,

T

Ban
¢¥ify Yo me this very awful Dispensation."
| R
? | o .
i
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 Abigail Sewall's experience as wife of the eminent
Judge covered only seven months, but: it may have brought
greater hapbiness than her preﬁious marriages. We do
not know. But the picture that Whit'tier has given of
Samuel Sewall promises much. : ‘

Samuel Sewall, the good and wise.
Hisi face with lines of firmness wrought,
He Wears the look of a men unbought,
. Who{ swears to his hurt and cpanges nod.
., Yet:touched and softened nevertheless
, With the grace of Christien gentleness;
i Theiface that a child would climb to kiss;
Trué and tender and brave and Jjust, ‘
- That man might honor and woman trust.

Though {acob Melyn showed his disapproval of the
Judge's part in the Salem Witcherafti sentence, he would
doubtless have approved the marriage: of his daughter
Abigail to Judge Sewall, By reason of wealth, high of-
fices,!learhing, sense, wit, fearlessness and magneni-
mity, the man was, in his day, 2 potentate among the men-
of Massachusetts. ' '

But Jacob Melyn had died in 1708. He had several
children, but Samuel and Abigaih are the only descendants
of Jacob Melyn of whose fortunes or misforiunes we have

any record.i o i

Isaac Mélyn.died-in 1722, lpaviné one child, Joanna,
Through thié daughter, who had married the young minister,
Jonathan Di¢kinson, degtined to' become a distinguished
figure . in Néw Jersey, Isaac had meny; descendants. But
that is another story. . j

. 1 _ _ : ,

So'far as can be ascertained, Co&nelis Melyn's chil-
dren made gdod, but no one of them cbuld compare with '
the pioneer father whose life of adventure and high en-
deavor ‘should never be forgotten by those who number him
among their forefathers. P !
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i

abrneliS-Nel n, Patroon of Statén Island, b.Antwerp 1600 or
O~ Tis perents both d,1606; he d.1663; m. 1627 Jannetje
adrisens of Myert. They had 7 childzen:

. ! -
1. Cornelia, b. Amsterdsm 1628; d.1718; m (1) April 1647
Jacobus Loper who d. 16533 m, (2) Jacobus Schellinger and,
moved to Easthampton, L.I. Son Abraham Schellinger was
| a pioneer settler of Amagensetd. '

5, Cornelis, b.Amsterdam 1633; d. ghipwreck Sept. 27, 1647,

3. Jetob, b.Amsterdam 1640; d.Boston 1708; went with his -
father 1657 to New Haven; reprimanded by Governor and
fined 20 Shillings for kissing ‘Sarah Tuttle; m.1662 Hennah,
dau, George Hubbard of Guilford, Conn. Hamnah's sister m.
Humphrey Spinning. In 1665 these Melyns and Spinnings
moved to Elizabeth Town, N.J., where Jacob was appointed
one of the schepens and was captain of militia. He was
partner in a whaling business. Moved 1674 to N.Y. Moved.
1689 to Boston so his son Samuel could go vo Harvard.
Jacob and Hannah Melyn had: :

1. Susanna, Bapt. Oct, 16, 1674, in Dutch Church, N.Y.
2' JB.GOb, [1] " -;l‘l !“ 4 " - n -
%3, Daniel, Bapt. Aug. 1677. :
4, Samuel, h moom . 13,1711; grad. Harvard 1696,

' minister of Presb. Ch, Elizabeth Town, N.J. until 1708.
5. Abigail, Bapt. Aug. 16773 d.May 26, 1720; m. (1) 1696
' James Woodmancy;.m.(2) before May 10, 1711, Willlem
Tilley who d.1717; m,(3) [0ct. 29, 1719, Judge
Samuel Sewall. o |

. 4, Another son b, Amsterdam, Xilled by Indians on Staten

5. Susannah, brAmerica, Bapt. 1644 N.Y., m.a N.Y. merchant.

6, Magdaleh, " n i " " T nmonr W R

?. Isaac, b.1646 in Americaj; d.l?dE in his house on Broad St.,
N.Y.C.;: m Temperance Loveredge, dau William Loveredge of
Albany.| In 1722 the only surviving child of Isaac and
Temperance Melyn was i g .

. ! ' . '
; Joanna Melyn, b.1683%; 4.1745; m.late 1708 or early-

- 1Y09 the Rev. Jonathan Dickinson, b.Apr. 22, 1688;

- dy0ct. 7, 1747. Thedr sﬁxth child ‘

' Temperance Dickinson m.Pohn Odell, b.l?lo(?xyool).
: d.June 25, 1750. Chil%ren (in probable order of age):

“ 1. Jonathen Odell, b.Sept. 25, 1737; d.Nov. 25,
. 1818; m,May 6, 1772 Anne de Cou. o
" i 2, Eunice Odell b.June 4, 17423 d.July 24, 18303
I m, Merch 1, 1766 Jonathan Ford b.Nov. 9, 1733:
t 3. Joanna Odell*mgaq Odell; sebtled in Bridgeport,
V. ' 4, Elizabeth 0dell, b.May 18, 1749; d.Jam. 20,
’ 1819; m,May 9, 1779 James Ford, b.Nov. 21,
17473 d.Max.| 1, 1827; bro,of Jonathen Ford.

lll
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